EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, September 2, 2015
7:00 PM

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence
Chairman will ask if anyone is going to record the meeting
Review of Tracking Log / Determine need for Workshop Meeting
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
Approval of Minutes
1. August5, 2015
Subdivision and Land Development Applications
1. 942 Cornwallis Drive (SKETCH PLAN)
G. Conditional Uses and Variances
1. Goshen Village Shopping Center / Conditional Use for Beverage Café (Dunkin Donuts)
2. Goshen Village Shopping Center / ZHB Application to Amend current ZHB Decision

moow>

m

H. Ordinance Amendments

L. Comprehensive Plan Update

J. Old Business

K. New Business

L. 2015 Goals

M. Any Other Matter

N. Liaison Reports

0. Correspondence

P. Dates of Importance
Aug 29, 2015 Community Day 5 PM / Fireworks at Dusk
Sept 07, 2015 Labor Day / Township Office Closed
Sept 09, 2015 Conservancy Board 7:00 pm
Sept 10, 2015 Historical Commission 7:00 pm
Sept 14, 2015 Municipal Authority 7:00 pm
Sept 15, 2015 Trail Open House 6:30 pm
Sept 15, 2015 Board of Supervisors 7:00 pm

Trail Plan Update

Sept 16, 2015 Futurist Committee 7:00 pm
Sept 17, 2015 Commerce Commission 7:00 pm
Sept 29, 2015 Zoning Hearing Board 7:30 pm

Newsletter Deadlines for 2015:
Winter: October 30
Bold Items indicate new information to review.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Agendas\Planning Commission\2015\PC AGENDA 098022015.doc




PO bk ot ek ek b ped ek ek ek ek
SOOI NNPERWN OOV B W —

DN NN
B

NS IO \O)
~N N

NS
O o

Lo L2
— O

Bl LI LW W W W WW
SO XN WA W

o
[\ IS

A e s
SO XRXIONWN B

W W
N —

Draft
EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
August §, 2015

The East Goshen Township Planning Commission held a regularly scheduled meeting on Wednesday,
August 5, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at the East Goshen Township building. Members present were: Vice
Chairman Adam Knox, Dan Landis, Jim McRee, Monica Close, Lori Kier and new member Brad Giresi.
Also present was Mark Gordon, Zoning Officer.

COMMON ACRONYMS:
BOS —~ Board of Supervisors CPTF — Comprehensive Plan Task Force
BC — Brandywine Conservancy CVS — Community Visioning Session
CB — Conservancy Board SWM — Storm Water Management

CCPC — Chester Co Planning Commission

A. FORMAL MEETING - 7:00
1. Adam called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. He led the Pledge of Allegiance and a moment
of silence to remember our troops.
2. Adam asked if anyone would be recording the meeting and if there were any public
comments about non-agenda items. There was no response.
3. Adam reviewed the Tracking Log and determined no need for a workshop
4. Adam noted that the minutes of the July 1, 2015 meeting were approved.

B. ORDINANCE REVIEW
The Commission reviewed the outline of items in Article II thru IV of the Zoning Ordinance:
Article 11 1. PRD/PUD - no changes needed
2. Animal Husbandry — Jim gave some background on what was discussed so far.
The Commission will continue to review this section
3. Temporary structure — This will be reviewed.
4. Publically & privately owned recreation — Definitions need to be consistent.
This will be reviewed.
5. Solar — This is done.
6. Wind — This will be reviewed.
7. Single Family Cluster — This will be reviewed.
8. Single Family Open space — This will be reviewed.
Article III - C1 and C2 will be reviewed and updated.
Article IV - Max Building Height and Rooftop structures are done. All other items will be
reviewed.

C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
Mark reported that the final draft will be on the website soon. He reviewed the process to
adoption planned for October 20™. The next meeting is Monday, August 17, 2015 at 7:00 pm.

D. ANY OTHER MATTER

1. Ordinance Amendment — Dogs — The proposed ordinance was reviewed. The reasons for this
ordinance are listed at the beginning. No more than 4 adult dogs. Adam found that this is the standard
number in ordinances across the country. It was noted that on page 2 it should read “against property
damage”. Jim moved to recommend that the Board of Supervisors adopt the amendment to the accessory
use section of the Zoning Ordinance as it relates to dogs. Dan seconded the motion. The motion passed 5
to 1 — Lori voted no.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Minutes\Planning Commission\2015\PC 8-5-15 draft.docx 1



OO0~ UN AWK =

Pk ok ek
N = O

2. Drone Ordinance — After some discussion, the Commission members will read this ordinance
for discussion at a future meeting.

E. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, Monica moved to adjourn the meeting. Lori seconded the

motion. The meeting adjourned at 9:20 pm. The next regular meeting will be held on
September 2, 2015 at 7:00 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Ruth Kiefer, Recording Secretary

F:\Data\Shared Data\Minutes\Planning Commission\2015\PC 8-5-15 draft.docx



G10¢c/8¢/8 SIX'§1.022060 40 Bo Buioel L Dd\G10Z\607 Bupioel | Dduoissiwwo) Buluueld\s,0gv\ereq paieys\elea:4

panoiddy SLvely |SUvLiv) SLILIY | SLILIY Gi0eve/el VYN VYN [Skece|shieeie | IS | A (uosusjslyD) aALg MOPESIN 219

paiusqg GL/9Z/1 [SLLe/L|SLoe/L| SLILIL ¥i/8L/cl| VN VN [ vL/G/CL { PL/GZL | IS |aHZ ‘uqbingsengs 3 Legl
panoiddy GLve/L | YN G102/ SLAL YLOL/OL |[PL/SLICLIPLIOLOLL PL/G/LL (PL/SLIOL] did | AS PH I9ISAYD ‘N 1L

SR YN VN VN VYN [VYN|] VWN VN VN VN VN AS ‘P JIoAISSSY YOl
panoiddy SLvely [SLvLIvE SLLY | SLHLY GloZye/cf VN VN | Sl/ige/c | hiee/e | IS [aHZ (swJied ssimg) aYid lloed 9651
panoiddy SLIve/LISLI6IL|SVILIL|SUILIL GL/62/S| VYN VN _|S1/12/S|G1/LC/S N Yws /1S IIH 61
panoiddy YN VN VN VN [VN| V¥N VN VN VN VN | d/idi a1 UOISINSY UE|d [eul JUSH MON

§10Z Wl pajojdwiod

paJsinbai uonoe nd 1o uonesiddy maN = pjog

G1/S/0L |GL/62/61GL/S/0L| GL/C/6 00/0L/L VYN YN SL/9/8 | SL/9/8 | MS |dHZ subig Buipuejsaalq ddv GHZ DSAD
Gl/6/01 |SL/SL/6|SL/S/0L) GL/2/6 gLreLe YN YN GL/9/8 | G1L/9/8 [ AS | ND (NIMNNQ / edeqifiqy) ayen abesonag ddv nd OSA9
YN | YN | wN [ VN |vN| WN VN_| WN_| VN _|slozig s |as 9ALQ SHIEMUIOD Z¥6
m z o o |¥ m m m 4 M m. > aweN uoneoiddy
o = | 2|z |8 ¥ ] ) A & |s|E
- mn —_—
gl &l 2|8 S |8 |8 | 8| 3§ |28
2 o - > |3 W Q o o o S
2 > m e 2] M U =
[« 3 m [+] m. - d = = —
A =2 = = o [ Jlo
o e = = c
= lw] «Q .m ,T
) 2 o o
5| 5 s m ‘
[+:] .,.0 =] ,.o
-~ 5 7]
3 : g
o - =
@ m
o
b -

6o Bunjoes ] uoneosyddy
uoissiwwon Buiuueld diysumo| usysos) jseq




Memorandum

East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike
West Chester, PA 19380

Voice:  610-692-7171
Fax: 610-692-8950

E-mail: mgordon@eastgoshen.org

Date: 8/26/2015

To: Planning Commission
From: Mark Gordon, Township Zoning Officer M({a
Re: 942 Cornwallis Dr. Sketch Plan

Commission Members,
The Township has received a SD Sketch Plan Submission for 942 Cornwallis Dr. The

sketch plan shows a subdivision of the 3.5+ acre parcel creating on additional residential

building lot.
The applicant is seeking the PC’s review and comments prior to submitting a complete

SD/LD Application.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\53-4\53-4-37.1 (942 Cornwallis Drive}\SD Sketch Plan\Memo to PC re. 942 CormWal Dr
08262015.doc




610-692-7171

www.eastgoshen.org BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

CHESTER COUNTY
1580 PAOLI PIKE, WEST CHESTER, PA 19380-6199

August 26, 2015
Dear Property Owner:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Robert and Amanda Gionfriddo,
the owners of 942 Cornwallis Dr., West Chester, PA 19380, have submitted a Sketch Plan
to the Township for review. The sketch plan proposes a subdivision of the 3.5+ acre lot
into two residential building lots.

Pursuant to Township policy, property owners and residents within 1000 feet of
the subject property are notified of sketch plan submissions. The applicant will present
the plan to the Planning Commission in order to hear the Commissions’ initial comments
prior to submitting an official subdivision and Land Development application.

The plan will be reviewed and discussed at the date and time outlined below
and is subject to change without further written notice.

September 2, 2015 - Planning Commission Meeting (7:00 pm)

All meetings are held at the Township Building and are open to the pubﬁc. The
plan is available for review at the Township building during normal business hours.
Please give me a call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely, &/\

Mark A. Gordon
Township Zoning Officer

Cc: All Township Authorities, Boards and Commissions

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\53-4\53-4-37.1 (942 Cornwallis Drive)\SD Sketch Plan\1000 foot letter for
Sketch Plan 08262015.doc




Memorandum

East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380
Voice: 610-692-7171

Fax: 610-692-8950
E-mail: mgordon@eastgoshen.org

Date: 8/27/2015

To: Planning Commission

From: Mark Gordon, Township Zoning Officer /VV( é

Re: Beverage Café Conditional Use / Dunkin Donuts/ Goshen Village Shopping Center

Commission Members,

As you know and can see in your meeting packet, the Conditional Use application has
been submitted for the proposed Dunkin Donuts Store in the former Citadel Bank building in the
Goshen Village Shopping Center (GVSC).

All of the Conditional use issues were contemplated during the Zoning Ordinance
amendment that was approved early this year. The ordinance is not yet codified however | have
enclosed a copy for your use here.

Staff has reviewed the application and plans for the use and has determined that it
meets the ordinance requirements.

The hearing is scheduled for 9/15. | have provided a draft motion for your review and
consideration.

Draft Motion:

Mr. Chairman, | move that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the
Conditional Use application of Abjibapa Enterprises, LLC. To operate a Beverage Café at 1500
Paoli Pike as outlined in the Zoning Ordinance with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall provide the Township with a draft parking agreement which
addresses the 5 parking spaces eliminated for the drive thru in the event the Township
determines in the future that they are needed.

2. The Drive Thru menu board shall automatically turn off when the store is closed.

The trash enclosure shall be closed at all times except when being serviced.

4. The use shall include a serviceable grease trap for food waste sewage if determined by
the Township upon building plan review.

5. The drive thru landscape screening shall be installed as described in the Conservancy

Board Review letter dated August 13, 2015.

6. All new rooftop structures shall be painted to be aesthetically compatible with the roof
facade.

7. There shall be no outside storage of any kind, not including the arrangement of outdoor
seating.

W

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\53-4\53-4-77 (Goshen Village)\Beverage Cafe Conditional Use (Dunkin) 2015\Memo to
PC 08272015.doc



EAST GOSHEN
CONSERVANCY

August 13, 2015

East Goshen Township
Planning Commission
1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, Pa. 19380 Iy
A 6 df

N / % r4[ &

Re: Beverage Café / Conditional Use Plan for Dunkin Donuts ‘( ;»é‘\)\

Landscape Screening Recommendation

Dear Commission Members:

'i\g El
At their meeting on August 12, 2014 the Conservancy Board unammgﬂsly approved the

following motion:

Mr. Chairman, | move that we recommend that the Planning Commission accept the
Landscape screening proposed on the Goshen Village plans for the new Dunkin Donuts
location proposed with the following conditions:

1. Eastern white pines shall not be used as a landscape screening species for
this project.

2. Arborvitae is acceptable for the drive thru screening so long as a deer
resistant variety such as the Green Giant is used.

3. The evergreen screening for the garbage dumpster enclosure shall be
consistent with the Township Tree Resolution and not include species
identified as invasive plants in the east Goshen Township code. These
evergreen plantings shall be diversified.

Sincerely,

Mark A. Gordon
Zoning Officer

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\53-4\53-4-77 (Goshen Village)\Beverage Cafe Conditional Use (Dunkin)
1 5 2Q1%CB Rec R PG 0p132015dpe | ¢ E, WEST CHESTER, PA. 193380

!




610-692-7171

wiweastgoshen.org BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

CHESTER COUNTY
1580 PAOLI PIKE, WEST CHESTER, PA 19380-6199

August 12, 2015
Dear Property Owner:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Abjibapa Enterprises LLC (The
Applicant) has submitted a Conditional Use application for a Beverage Café use within
the Goshen Village Shopping Center. The Applicant proposes to locate the Beverage
Café Use within the former Citadel Bank Branch Building within the Goshen Village
Shopping Center at 1504 Paoli Pike, West Chester, PA 19380 which is located in the C-2
zoning district, Local Convenience Commercial. The Applicant proposes no changes to
the exterior of the existing building other than signage. The applicant proposes a drive
thru service lane to service their customers and an enclosed garbage dumpster area
adjacent to the building location. A Beverage Café use is permitted use in the C-2 zoning
district. The full application is available for review at the Township building.

Pursuant to Township policy, property owners within 1000 feet of the subject
property are notified of Conditional Use applications. The meeting dates for this
matter are listed below and subject to change without further written notice:

September 2, 2015 - Planning Commission (7:00 PM)
September 15, 2015 — Board of Supervisors (7:00 PM — Conditional Use Hearing)

All meetings are held at the Township Building and are open to the public. The
Zoning Hearing Board Application is available for review at the Township building during
normal business hours. If any person who wishes to attend the hearing has a disability
and/or requires an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to observe or
participate in the proceedings, he or she should contact East Goshen Township at 610-
692-7171 to discuss how those needs may be accommodated.

Please give me a call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely, g

Mark A. Gordon
Township Zoning Officer

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\53-4\53-4-77 (Goshen Village)\Beverage Cafe Conditional Use (Dunkin)
2015\1000 foot letter CU 08122015.doc



}k Orth-Rodgers & Associates, Inc.
TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS AND PLANNERS

Mr. Louis F. Smith, Jr., Township Manager
East Goshen Township

1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380-6199

August 29, 2014

RE: Dunkin Donuts Review

Dear Rick:

| am in receipt of McMahon Associates Transportation Impact Study dated August 2014
regarding the 3,000 square-foot eatery with a drive-through lane’s impact to local traffic in the
vicinity of the above referenced site located in the Goshen Village Shopping Center at Paoli
Pike and Boot Road in the Township. The site entails the redevelopment of the existing vacant
bank facility with access to both Paoli Pike and Boot Road via existing driveways to each via
signalized access at Paoli Pike and stop control at Boot Road.

The following constitutes my review of the impact study:

1.

3.

ORA concurs in general with the introduction and the existing conditions reported for both
Paoli Pike and Boot Road in the vicinity of the site. It should be noted that the intersection
of Paoli and Boot has channelized right turn lanes in the eastbound and southbound that
typically only effect the southbound and westbound directions of Boot and Paoli,
respectively (noted in Appendix A photographs).

ORA concurs with the existing traffic count periods and the various peak hours found (7:30
AM, 4:45 PM and 11:45 AM Saturday) for Paoli & Boot, (8:00 AM, 5:00 PM and 11:30 AM
Saturday) for Paoli & Site Access, and (7:30 AM, 4:45 PM and 11:45 AM Saturday) for Boot
& Site Access. The peak hours are within the general timeframe that may only see minor
differential volumes between the adjacent intersections.

It was specifically noted that due to school not being in session, an additional count would
need to be done after school has been in session for at least one week. The applicant has
agreed to have the count performed to determine if the data presented with a ‘growth’ of 2%
indicated in the report to account for the reduced summertime traffic.

An additional note, the study does not include the channelized right turn volumes at either
terminus of Paoli Pike or Boot Road channelized right turns. Through discussions with the
applicant’s traffic consultant, it was determined that the new count conducted in September
will at least get the eastbound to southbound channelized right, since this node is near the
Boot Road Site Access point.

A review of the existing traffic conditions at the intersection of Paoli Pike & Boot Road
indicates that current levels of service are between ‘A’s and ‘D’s for all three peak periods
with a level of service ‘E’ for the westbound Boot Road through movement during the AM
peak. The signalized access on Paoli Pike operates with driveway levels of service ‘D’s
during all peaks while the Boot Road access only shows a ‘D’ for the drive during the PM
peak. ORA concurs with these as reported.

301 Lindenwood Drive | Suite 130 | Malvern, PA 19355 | www.orth-rodgers.com | Phone 610.407.9700 | Fax 610.407.9600




Mr. Rick Smith, East Goshen Twp.
Dunkin Donuts Review
Page 2 of 3— August 29, 2014

4. Site traffic was investigated for the proposed 3,000 square-foot facility. Based on the ITE
Trip Generation Manual, the calculated trips are acceptable. Two comments we have
regarding this investigation:

a. The comparison generations between the previous bank use and the new Dunkin
Donuts makes sense as part of the overall usage of the facility and its general
comparison of generated trips. After discussions with McMahon regarding this, it was
determined that the ‘bank’ trips are being reincorporated as background growth traffic.
Though this should be clearly identified within the text, additional description should be
provided as to where the bank traffic is being incorporated.

Our concern with this approach stems from the fact that the reduction of bank traffic
from the Dunkin Donuts traffic provides the developer with traffic ‘credits’ for his
proposed site. The “with-out development” traffic is artificially higher with the added
bank traffic which did not exist at all during the traffic counts conducted at the beginning
of August 2014.

b. Regarding the AM vs. PM vs. Saturday trip generation rates for the Dunkin Donuts
facility, we are in concurrence with the use of the ITE rates by square-footage which are
conservatively higher than the number of seats rate.

5. Trip distribution of the site traffic was based on current traffic patterns of Paoli Pike, Boot
Road and the shopping center access patterns. ORA concurs with this distribution.

6. Future assessments of the three key intersections indicate that levels of service will still be
acceptable during the peak hours with a growth factor of 1.91%. Proposed site traffic
attributes approximately 10.2% of the AM peak hour Paoli & Access volumes, 13.5% of the
AM peak hour Boot & Access volumes and 3.1% of the AM peak hour Paoli & Boot
intersection volumes in the future and does not look to impact the two signalized
intersection operations after minor timing adjustments. The afternoon peak hour at the Boot
& Access drive is identified with a 13 second degradation (D to E for exiting movements,
existing compared to with-out development volumes), but only an additional 4 second delay
with the additional site traffic. (Again, would ‘with-out’ development traffic be that significant
and ‘with’ development traffic be that small based on our comments made in #4a above?)

7. In general, ORA also concurs that the queue analysis performed at the intersections
indicates insufficient eastbound left turn storage for the Boot Road left turn lane at Paoli
Pike occurring today. All other turn movement lanes are currently sufficient and even with
the growth and build out of the site, lane storage will should suffice. This is encouraging to
note that the Boot & Access left turn in and exits appear to not be significantly impacted by
the increased volumes associated with the redeveloped site.

8. Regarding internal site circulation, the site plan provided indicates a potential operation for
the drive-thru lane that removes existing parking spaces while increasing the stacking
available for drive-thru customers in the adjacent drive aisle. Our only concern is the
potential for numerous customers to want to visit the facility in the AM period making the
stacking longer than the available eight vehicles represented. We assume the developer
hasn’t provided any significant input to this concept to date so we will only comment to the
concept's suspect layout at this time. As with many small restaurants/eateries with drive




Mr. Rick Smith, East Goshen Twp.
Dunkin Donuts Review
Page 3 of 3— August 29, 2014

throughs, the typical layout ‘wraps’ around the building to limit the footprint that stacking
vehicles use away from the building. This site lends itself to just that operation as well.

So overall, ORA concurs with the bulk of study as presented. As requested, new AM and PM
peak hour traffic counts are required to determine if the West Chester Area School District
traffic effects the current study intersections significantly. Additional explanation of bank vs.
new facility trip generation should address the concern about reduced new site traffic from the
‘with development’ scenario.

| can be reached at (610) 407-9700 or dkaiser@orth-rodgers.com if you have any questions or
comments regarding this review.

Sincerely:
ORTH-RODGERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

A/ A

DEAN JKAISER, P.E., PTOE
Director of Traffic Signal Operations

F:\2014 059 EGT Dunkin\Documents\Correspondence\Letters\2014_08-29_DunkinDonuts Review.doc




+: BUurns

F"eI v Oern - Yodghras (’Tw? mAFAC Bag 5

THE

LAS ACRuiAD %—7f3ufl~s § Lou?,

GROUP

ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION
August 27, 2015

Mr. Mark Gordon, Township Zoning Officer
East Goshen Township

1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380-6199

RE: Dunkin Donuts Review 2

Dear Mark:

| am in receipt of McMahon Associates August 6, 2015 Response Letter regarding
the Transportation Impact Study dated August 2014 for the 3,000 square-foot eatery
with a drive-through lane. Additionally, an August 4, 2015 Transportation Impact
Study Supplement was issued for the above referenced site located in the Goshen
Village Shopping Center at Paoli Pike and Boot Road in the Township. The site
entails the redevelopment of the existing vacant bank facility with access to both Paoli
Pike and Boot Road via existing driveways to each via signalized access at Paoli Pike
and stop control at Boot Road.

The following constitutes my review of the provided material:

1. An additional AM peak period turning movement count was performed as
requested due to the 2014 summer count taken. Upon review, it is noted that AM
peak volume is higher while school is in session. All but Paoli’'s northbound left,
southbound left and Boot's westbound left and thru movements were higher in
September versus the August volumes. Overall, traffic was approximately 11%
higher when school is in session.

2. McMahon also complied with our request to provide turning movement count data
for the channelized northbound Paoli Pike right turn lane understanding that this
volume will impact the shopping center’'s Boot Road driveway. One concern we
have with the provided supplemental information is that the provided count data
sheet for Paoli and Boot identifies the direction of travel opposite of the Figure 1
graphic. Please ensure that the data is correctly represented.

3. Upon review of the site generated vehicular trips, their turning movement
assignments and the background growth of existing traffic, we concur with the
new AM peak hour volumes and operational analyses. Note that the supplement
Figure 2 legend should identify ‘[A] 2015 WITH DEVELOPMENT PM PEAK
HOUR'’ to “AM”.

4. The critical center driveway on Boot Road shows acceptable levels of service,
specifically during the critical AM peak. McMahon provided a gap analysis of the
current conditions at the driveway and have identified that for outbound left turn
traffic, 90 true (nonfactored) gaps over 8 seconds in duration exist on Boot Road
near the access. The left turn critical gap time of 7.1 seconds needs to be
exceeded, and the number of gaps greater than 7.1 seconds exceeds the number
of AM and PM peak left turn motorists.

Burns Engineering, Inc. 301 Lindenwood Drive, Suite 130, Malvern, PA 10320 phone: (610) 407-9700 fax: (215) 405-2450



Mr. Mark Gordon, East Goshen Twp.
Dunkin Donuts Review
Page 2 of 2 -~ August 27, 2015

Additionally, McMahon factored out the longer duration gaps to help identify the ‘additional’ gaps
that would be used by additional motorists in the left turn queue. They identified 188 gaps that
the left turn motorists from the driveway would have to make their maneuver onto Boot Road
which well exceeds the amount of left turn motorists during those peak periods.

Right turning motorists have minimally 120 gaps to over 400 gaps to work with, and we feel that
the minimal delay associated with the new site traffic will not impede this access.

The revised site plan provided within the supplement as well as independently illustrates a new
drive thru alignment approaching the facility. All eight existing parking spaces to the west side
of the parking stalls are to be removed to potentially allow for extended queuing for the drive
thru. Upwards of 10 vehicles could be queued in the approach while not impacting any potential
thru vehicles in the adjacent drive aisle. This is better that the previously proposed scheme.

As a result of the intended use of the building, it is also identified that a right exit only access be
incorporated near the Boot Road access as well. We feel this is prudent to get those drive thru
customers out efficiently. It's location at the corner of the two existing aisles works well. There
will be a net loss of 10 parking spaces that the Township will have to agree to if not
accommodated for elsewhere.

Based on the provided response letter, supplemental report and revised site plan, we concur

with the updated traffic assessment for the revitalized site .

| can be reached at (610) 407-9700 or dkaiser@burns-group.com if you have any questions or

comments regarding this review.

CC.

Sincerely,

THE BURNS GRQUP

705y A
DEAMJ. KAISER, P.E., PTOE
Principal Traffic Engineer

Rick Smith — East Goshen

F:\2014_059_EGT_Dunkin\Documents\Correspondence\Lefters\2015_08-27_DunkinDonutsReview2.doc




EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
CHESTER COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
ORDINANCE NO. _ 129-F-2015

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EAST GOSHEN
TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE OF 1997, AS
AMENDED, SECTION 240-6 TO ADD A DEFINITION FOR
BEVERAGE CAFE AND SHOPPING CENTER; SECTION
240-15.C TO ADD A NEW SUBPARAGRAPH (8) TO
ALLOW A BEVERAGE CAFE IN A SHOPPING CENTER
BY CONDITIONAL USE; SECTION 240-22.H TO
ESTABLISH REGULATIONS FOR MENU BOARDS, BILLS
OF FARE AND PRICE LISTS; SECTION 240-22.P TO
AMEND THE SIGN REGULATIONS FOR SIGNS
ERECTED IN THE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; SECTION
240-31.C(3)(cc) TO ADD CONDITIONAL USE
REGULATIONS FOR A BEVERAGE CAFE; AND TO
DELETE SECTION 240-20.G(3).

BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of East Goshen
Township, that the East Goshen Township Zoning Ordinance of 1997, as amended,
which is codified in Chapter 240 of the East Goshen Township Code, titled, “Zoning",
shall be amended as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 240-6, titled, “Definitions”, shall be amended to include the
following definitions:

Beverage Café — a building measuring not more than 3,500 square feet of gross
floor area where beverages and light fare normally and customarily associated
with coffee shops or tea rooms are served for on-site or off-site consumption.
Beverage café may also offer for sale coffee beans, tea, containers, mugs, coffee
or tea brewing equipment and other related products. A beverage café shall not
be considered a fast food restaurant and may have a drive-through lane.

Shopping Center- The multiple use of a single property for a group of
nonresidential uses, such as, but not limited to, retail stores, restaurants and
personal services, that are owned and maintained by a common entity. The
shopping center shall be planned and designed as an integrated unit with
common vehicular and pedestrian access, parking, utilities and stormwater
management facilities.

SECTION 2. Section 240-15.C shall be amended to add a new subparagraph (9) as
follows:




“(9) Beverage café with or without drive-through service in a shopping center.”

SECTION 3. Section 240-22.H shali be amended as follows:

“§240-22.H. Menu Boards, bills of fare or price lists.

(1) Notwithstanding anything in this Ordinance to the contrary, menu boards
for restaurants shall be permitted provided that all of the following
conditions are met:

(a)
(b)

(©

the menu board is 3 square feet or less in area;,

the letters and numbers on the menu board are a maximum of 3
inches in height; and

the sign is located on the building next to the entrance of the
establishment or in the window next to the enirance to the
establishment.

(2)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Ordinance, menu boards
associated with a beverage cafe with drive-through setvice in a shopping
center permitted pursuant to Section 240-15.CG(9) shall be permitted
provided that all of the following conditions are met:

(a)

(b)
(©)

(d)

(e)

the menu board shall not exceed eight feet in height, including the
base, as measured from the elevation of the vehicle drive-through;

the menu board shall not exceed fifty square feet in area;

if the menu board is illuminated it shall only be internally illuminated
and may only be illuminated during normal business hours;

the menu board shall be located so as not to obstruct traffic or sight
lines of vehicles in a shopping center; and

landscaping shall be planted to minimize the visibility of the menu
board from any public street.”

SECTION 4. Section 240-22.P shall be amended as follows:

"P. Signs permitted in commercial districts. Only the following types of signs are
permitted in a commercial district:

(1)  Exempt signs as provided in Subsection J.

(2)  Temporary signs as provided in Subsection 1.




(4)

Signs relating to the principal use on a lot, with a maximum of one
commercial establishment in accordance with the following regulations:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Wall sign. One wall sign shall be permitted for the commercial
establishment. Such sign shall not exceed two square feet in area
for each linear foot of wall-signable area, but not exceed 60 square
feet.

A freestanding sign not to exceed 10 square feet in area. No more
than one freestanding sign shall be permitted on each street
frontage.

A window sign not to exceed 20% of window area to which it is
attached.

Signs relating to the principal use on a lot, including more than one
commercial establishment are permitted in accordance with the following
regulations:

(a)

Wall sign. One wall sign shall be permitted for each commercial
establishment. Such sign shall not exceed two feet in height or be
longer than 75% of the linear length of the individual commercial
establishment, with a maximum size of 32 square feet. Two wall
signs shall be permitted if the commercial establishment is in a
stand-alone building in a shopping center.

1]  All newly placed wall signs attached to the same building:

[a] Shall be generally consistent in proportion with
existing signs.

[b]  Shall not be box-type signs if at least 75% of the
existing signs are not box-type signs.

[c] Shall maintain common vertical and horizontal lines
with other signs in a manner consistent with the
architecture of the building.

[d]  Should be generally consistent in materials, font style
and type size with other signs attached to the same
building.

[2]  An applicant for construction of a new principal building
intended to include more than one establishment is strongly
encouraged to submit a proposed set of standards that the




(b)

(©)

[31

building owner intends to use to control the types and colors
of signs to ensure compatibility among the signs.

See Subsection K which prohibits certain types of signs,
such as flashing and above-the-roofline signs.

Wall sign alternative. In lieu of the wall sign referred to in
Subsection P{4)(a), each commercial establishment in the
structure shall be permitted to erect one freestanding sign in
accordance with the following requirements:

[a]  Each freestanding sign shall have a maximum size of
10 square feet and a maximum height of 10 feet.

[o]  Each freestanding sign shall be located immediately
in front of its respective establishment.

[c]  All portions of the freestanding sign shall be located
no more than 10 feet from the respective
establishment.

[d]  The freestanding signs shall comply with all front, rear
and side yard requirements and they shall comply
with the setback requirements for the zoning district.

Freestanding signs.

(M

[2]

A shopping center use in the C-2 District or within a PRD
may have a freestanding sign with a maximum area of 120
square feet and a maximum height of 14 feet on each street
frontage. No more than one freestanding sign shall be
permitted on each street frontage.

All other freestanding signs shall not exceed 10 square feet
in area nor five feet in height. No more than one freestanding
sign shall be permitted on each street frontage.

Window signs. The cumulative size of window signs is not to
exceed 20% of the window area to which it or they are attached.
Such signs may contain the names or businesses of the occupants
of the facilities.

All signs on the structure shall be of the same design and lit in a
similar manner and shall be architecturally compatible with the
structure.




(6)  Sign bonus. Each permitted 10 square feet maximum freestanding sign in
a commercial district may be increased in size to a maximum of 20 square
feet if the sign is not internally illuminated and is constructed of relief-cut
wood (other than plywood).

(6)  Any sign (as defined in § 240-6, which includes but is not limited to
graphics and logos) attached to or incorporated into functional elements of
a building or development (including but not limited to awnings, canopies
or murals) that serve an advertising or use identification purpose shall be
considered to be a sign, and specifically shall be regulated by all
provisions of this section for the applicable zoning district.”

SECTION 5. Section 240-31.C(3)(cc) shall be amended as follows:
“(cc) Restaurant and beverage café.

{11  Any restaurant or beverage café with a drive-through shall be designed to
allow safe pedestrian movement on the property and with sufficient
stacking capacity to prevent backups of traffic onto a street.

[2]  All outdoor trash dumpsters shall be totally screened as required by § 240-
27C(4).”

SECTION 6. Section 240-20.G(3) shall be deleted.

SECTION 7. Severability. If any sentence, clause, section or part of this Ordinance is
for any reason found to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, such unconstitutionality,
illegality or invalidity shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions,
sentences, clauses, sections, or parts hereof. It is hereby declared as the intent of the
Board of Supervisors that this Ordinance would have been adopted had such
unconstitutional, illegal or invalid sentence, clause, section or part thereof not been
included herein.

SECTION 8. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with any
provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as the same affects this
Ordinance.

SECTION 9. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective in five (5) days
from the date of adoption.




Btal

ENAGTED AND ORDAINED this _/__day of ™ v!y 2015,
ATTEST: EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
/ BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
/ -~ L s
/C /?/ //7/ A
Louis F. Smith, Secretary E. /M\art)LSh?z}e Chairman
&x W
ShayXDAs yéff Vice-Chairman
¢ p \S&L

Carmen BattaVIo Member

( L\, u((’n, Lo | \fcté b

Charles W. Proctor, lll, Esquire, Member

S A/

Janet L. Emanuel, Member




Memorandum

East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380
Voice: 610-692-7171

Fax: 610-692-8950

E-mail: mgordon@eastgoshen.org

Date: 8/27/2015

To: Planning Commission a
From: Mark Gordon, Township Zoning Officer

Re: ZHB Application / 1988 ZHB Decision Amendment/ Goshen Village freestanding signs

Commission Members,

As you may know the GVSC is prohibited from having freestanding “Monument Signs”
on the property due to a Zoning Hearing Board Decision from 1988 when the owner at the time
agreed to that condition in return for zoning relief for two signs on the supermarket and a
second the wall sign on the corner stores in the shopping center.

The ordinance permits freestanding “monument” signs on all road frontages for
shopping centers within the C-2 Zoning District. Staff is of the opinion that the freestanding signs
would pose little impact to the surrounding residential neighborhoods do to the heavy
landscape screening that exists today which buffers these neighborhoods.

| have drafted a motion for your review and consideration.

Draft Motion:

Mr. Chairman, | move that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Zoning
Hearing Board Application to amend the ZHB Decision from 1988 and permit freestanding signs
on the Goshen Village Shopping Center property as permitted in the ordinance, with the
following condition:

1. The property owner agrees to meet with the Township and it’s consultants in order to
orient the sign locations so as to best accommodate the alignment of the proposed Paoli

Pike Trail.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\53-4\53-4-77 (Goshen Village)\Sign Variance 2015\Memo to PC 08272015.doc



610-692-7171

www.eastgoshen.org BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

CHESTER COUNTY
1580 PAOLI PIKE, WEST CHESTER, PA 19380-8199

August 18, 2015
Dear Property Owner:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Goshen Equities, LLC, {The Applicant
and owner of the Goshen Village Shopping Center at the corner of Boot Rd. and Paoli Pike)
has submitted a Zoning Hearing Board application. The applicant is requesting to amend
this Board’s March 30, 1988 Decision for the shopping center, which in granting three
variances, also attached the following condition: “There shail never be erected, on the site,
a freestanding sign other than at the location of the intersection of Paoli Pike and Boot
Road, as shown and described generally, on Exhibit A-10.”

The property subject to the application is a 11.03 acre parcel known as Goshen
Village Shopping Center at the northeast corner of Paoli Pike and Boot Road, East Goshen
Township, Chester County, Pennsylvania (Tax Parcel No. 53-4-77). Applicant proposes to
erect two freestanding pylon signs, one along the street frontage of Paoli Pike, and the
other along the street frontage of Boot Road, each totaling 120 square feet in area and
being no more than 14 feet in height, which signs are currently permitted by the Zoning
Chapter of the East Goshen Code.

Pursuant to Township policy, property owners within 1000 feet of the subject
property are notified of Conditional Use applications. The meeting dates for this matter
are listed below and subject to change without further written notice:

September 2, 2015 ~ Planning Commission (7:00 PM)
September 15, 2015 — Board of Supervisors (7:00 PM)
September 29, 2015 — Zoning Hearing Board (7:30 PM / Zoning Hearing)

All meetings will be held at the Township Building and are open to the public. The
Zoning Hearing Board Application is available for review at the Township building during
normal business hours. If any person who wishes to attend the hearing has a disability
and/or requires an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to observe or participate
in the proceedings, he or she should contact the Township Building at 610-692-7171, to
discuss how those needs may be accommodated.

Please give me a call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely, &L—\
I A

Mark A. Gordon
Township Zoning Officer

F:\Data\Shared Data\Property Management\563-4\53-4-77 (Goshen Village)\Sign Variance 2015\1000 foot letter ZHB app
08182015.dog-- -



C . McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC
840 Springdale Drive | Exton, PA 1934

R - el p 610-594-9995 | f 610-594-956
TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS & PLANNERS mcmahonassociates,cor

PRINCIPAL
Joseph W. McMahon, P.I
Joseph J, DeSantis, P.E., PTC
August 6, 2015 .Jghn S. DePalmr -
William T, Steffer
Casey A. Moore, P.
Gary R. McNaughton, P.E., PTC

N . ASSOCIATE
Mr. Louis F. Smith, Jr. John J. Mitchell, P.1
Township MaIlager Christopher J. Williams, P.I
. R. Trent Ebersole, P.I
1580 PaoHl Pike Matthew M. Kozsuch, P.1
Maureen Chlebek, P.E., PTC

West Chester, PA 19380-6199

RE:  Response to Traffic Engineering Comments
East Goshen Dunkin Donuts
East Goshen Township, Chester County, PA
McMahon Project No. 814440.12

Dear Mr, Smith:

Our office has received the Traffic Engineering Review letter prepared by the Burns Group (formerly
Orth-Rodgers & Associates, Inc.) dated August 29, 2014. On behalf of our client, we respectfully
offer the following responses to each of the review comments repeated below:

1. ORA concurs in general with the introduction and the existing conditions reported for both
Paoli Pike and Boot Road in the vicinity of the site. It should be noted that the intersection of
Paoli and Boot has channelized right turn lanes in the eastbound and southbound that
typically only effect the southbound and westbound directions of Boot and Paoli,
respectively (noted in Appendix A photographs).

Response | No response required.

2. ORA concurs with the existing traffic count periods and the various peak hours found (7:30
AM, 4:45 PM and 11:45 AM Saturday) for Paoli & Boot, (8:00 AM, 5:00 PM and 11:30 AM
Saturday) for Paoli & Site Access, and (7:30 AM, 4:45 PM and 11:45 AM Saturday) for Boot &
Site Access. The peak hours are within the general timeframe that may only see minor
differential volumes between the adjacent intersections.

It was specifically noted that due to school not being in session, an additional count would
need to be done after school has been in session for at least one week. The applicant has
agreed to have the count performed to determine if the data presented with a ‘growth’ of 2%
indicated in the report to account for the reduced summertime traffic.

An additional note, the study does not include the channelized right turn volumes at either
terminus of Paoli Pike or Boot Road channelized right turns. Through discussions with the
applicant’s traffic consultant, it was determined that the new count conducted in September
will at least get the eastbound to southbound channelized right, since this node is near the

Corporate Headquarters: Fort Washington, Pennsylvania
Serving the East Coast from 13 offices throughout the Mid-Atlantic, New England, and Florida




Mr. Louis E. Smith, Jr.
August 6, 2015

Page?2

Boot Road Site Access point.

Response | An additional traffic count was conducted in September 2014 when school was back
in session. It was discussed with the Township Traffic Engineer that the weekday morning peak
period would be recounted, as this was the only studied period that would be significantly
influenced by school traffic. Please see the enclosed Transportation Study Supplement.

3. A review of the existing traffic conditions at the intersection of Paoli Pike & Boot Road
indicates that current levels of service are between ‘A’s and ‘D’s for all three peak periods
with a level of service ‘E’ for the westbound Boot Road through movement during the AM

peak.

The signalized access on Paoli Pike operates with driveway levels of service ‘D’s

during all peaks while the Boot Road access only shows a ‘D’ for the drive during the PM
peak. ORA concurs with these as reported.

Response | No response required.

4, Site traffic was investigated for the proposed 3,000 square-foot facility. Based on the ITE Trip
Generation Manual, the calculated trips are acceptable, Two comments we have regarding
this investigation:

a.

The comparison generations between the previous bank use and the new Dunkin Donuts
makes sense as part of the overall usage of the facility and its general comparison of
generated trips. After discussions with McMahon regarding this, it was determined
that the ‘bank’ trips are being reincorporated as background growth traffic. Though
this should be clearly identified within the text, additional description should be
provided as to where the bank traffic is being incorporated.

Our concern with this approach stems from the fact that the reduction of bank
traffic from the Dunkin Donuts traffic provides the developer with traffic ‘credits’ for
his proposed site. The “with-out development” traffic is artificially higher with the
added bank traffic which did not exist at all during the traffic counts conducted at the
beginning of August 2014.

Regarding the AM vs. PM vs, Saturday trip generation rates for the Dunkin
Donuts facility, we are in concurrence with the use of the ITE rates by square-footage
which are conservatively higher than the number of seats rate.

Response | The traffic impact study conservatively and appropriately evaluates the traffic
conditions of the study area and intersections with full occupancy conditions of the approved
shopping center under future without-development conditions. In the future with-development
conditions, the study evaluates the incremental traffic impacts of the Dunkin Donuts
project/application (beyond what is permitted with current shopping center approvals).
Occupancy of the existing buildings and vacant space does not require Township approval, and
therefore, should not be utilized in determining the impacts of the application, nor should it be
considered a “credit”.




Mzr. Louis F. Smith, Jr.
August 6, 2015
Page 3

5. Trip distribution of the site traffic was based on current traffic patterns of Paoli Pike, Boot
Road and the shopping center access patterns. ORA concurs with this distribution.

Response | No response required.

6. Future assessments of the three key intersections indicate that levels of service will still be
acceptable during the peak hours with a growth factor of 1.91%. Proposed site traffic
attributes approximately 10.2% of the AM peak hour Paoli & Access volumes, 13.5% of the AM
peak hour Boot & Access volumes and 3.1% of the AM peak hour Paoli & Boot
intersection volumes in the future and does not look to impact the two signalized
intersection operations after minor timing adjustments. The afternoon peak hour at the Boot &
Access drive is identified with a 13 second degradation (D to E for exiting movements,
existing compared to with-out development volumes), but only an additional 4 second delay
with the additional site traffic. (Again, would “with-out’ development traffic be that significant and
‘with’ development traffic be that small based on our comments made in #4a above?)

Response | Occupancy of the vacant, approved retail space within the shopping center,
including the existing bank building, will add traffic to the adjacent roadway network and have
minor impacts to the traffic operations. Again, the incremental traffic associated with the
proposed Dunkin Donuts will only add a negligible amount of delay to the adjacent roadway
network, compared to full occupancy conditions of the approved shopping center, Regardless,
the signalized study intersections will continue to function at acceptable levels of service and
there are sufficient gaps for traffic exiting the unsignalized driveway (see enclosed TIA
Supplement).

7. In general, ORA also concurs that the queue analysis performed at the intersections indicates
insufficient eastbound left turn storage for the Boot Road left turn lane at Paoli Pike
occurring today. All other turn movement lanes are currently sufficient and even with the
growth and build out of the site, lane storage will should suffice. This is encouraging to note
that the Boot & Access left turn in and exits appear to not be significantly impacted by the
increased volumes associated with the redeveloped site.

Response | We concur with this assessment and further note that the additional site-traffic will
only increase the queue length for the eastbound left turn storage for the Boot Road left turn
lane at the Paoli Pike intersection by a few feet (less than one vehicle length).

8. Regarding internal site circulation, the site plan provided indicates a potential operation for the
drive-thru lane that removes existing parking spaces while increasing the stacking available for
drive-thru customers in the adjacent drive aisle. Our only concern is the potential for numerous
customers to want to visit the facility in the AM period making the stacking longer than the
available eight vehicles represented. We assume the developer hasn’t provided any significant
input to this concept to date so we will only comment to the concept’s suspect layout at this




Mr. Louis F. Smith, Jr.
August 6, 2015
Page 4

time. As with many small restaurants/eateries with drive throughs, the typical layout “wraps’
around the building to limit the footprint that stacking vehicles use away from the building.
This site lends itself to just that operation as well,

Response | The site plan has been updated and includes improvements to the configuration of
the drive-thru facility that will better accommodate the drive-thru queuing by reducing both
drive-thru/parking conflicts and drive-thru/pedestrian conflicts. Please refer to the TIS
Supplement (dated 8/4/2015) for addition information.

We trust the preceding responses, as well as the enclosed Transportation Impact Study Supplement,
satisfactorily addresses the traffic engineering review. If you have any questions or wish to discuss

any of the responses in further detail, please do not hesitate to contact Christopher J. Williams, P.E.,

or me at your convenience. :

Sincerely,

J. Yurick, QEV PTOE, PTP
Senior Project Manager

Enclosure

cc: Diptesh Patel, Abjibapa Enterprises, LLC
Patrick McKenna, Esquire, Gawthrop Greenwood, PC

I:\eng\ 814440\ Correspondence\ Municipality\ Traffic Response Letter 08-06-2015.docx




CMCMAHN

September 16, 2014
Updated August 4, 2015

Mr. Diptesh Patel
Abjibapa Enterprises, LLC
5101 Pennell Road

Media, PA 19063

RE:  Transportation Impact Study Supplement
Dunkin’ Donuts — Goshen Village Shopping Center
East Goshen Township, Chester County, PA
McMahon Project No. 814440.11

Dear Mr. Patel:

McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC -

840 Springdale Drive | Exton, PA 1934
p 610-594-9995 | f 610-594-956
mcmahonassociates,cor

PRINCIPAL

Joseph W. McMahon, P.I
Joseph J, DeSantis, P.E., PTC
John S. DePalir

William T. Steffer

Casey A, Moore, P.I

Gary R. McNaughton, P.E., PTC
ASSOCIATE

John J. Mitchell, P.i
Christopher J. Williams, P.1
R. Trent Ebersole, P.1
Matthew M, Kozsuch, P.1
Maureen Chiebek, P.E,, PTC

McMahon Associates, Inc. has completed a transportation impact study supplement for the
proposed Dunkin’ Donuts located within the Goshen Village Shopping Center in East Goshen
Township, Chester County, PA. As you are aware, our office completed a transportation impact
study entitled Transportation Impact Study for the Proposed Dunkin’ Donuts dated August 2014, which
evaluates the transportation impact of the proposed Dunkin’ Donuts store with a drive-thru
window. The purpose of this supplement is to 1) provide updated weekday morning peak hour
traffic count data, 2) summarize a gap study completed to evaluate the Boot Road access during the
weekday afternoon peak hour, and 3) summarize the traffic implications of the revised site plan.

Updated Weekday Morning Peak Hour Analysis

The traffic counts contained in the original transportation impact study were conducted in August

2014 prior to the opening of area schools. As such, in order to evaluate traffic conditions when all of
the area schools are open, our office completed updated manual turning movement traffic counts in
September 2014 at the intersection of Boot Road and Paoli Pike during the weekday morning
commuter peak period (7:00 AM to 9:00 AM). In addition, the updated weekday morning peak hour
count also included the traffic volumes at the northbound Paoli Pike channelized right-turn lane, In
addition, the through traffic volumes at the Paoli Pike and Boot Road access intersections were also
updated/increased by balancing the approach volumes from the Paoli Pike/Boot Road intersection.
The traffic count data is tabulated in 15-minute increments in Attachment 1.

In order to complete the revised weekday morning peak hour analysis, our office used the same
future traffic projection assumptions used in the original transportation impact study. The existing,
2015 future without-development, and 2015 future with-development traffic volumes are shown in
Figure 1. The traffic volumes in Figure 1 were subjected to detailed capacity/level-of-service
analysis, the results of which are shown in Figure 2, and summarized in Table 1. In addition, the
existing and future queues based on this updated analysis are shown in Table 2. The detailed

Corporate Headquarters: Fort Washington, Pennsylvania
Serving the East Coast from 13 offices throughout the Mid-Atlantic, New England, and Florida




Mr. Louis F. Smith, Jr.
August 6, 2015
Page2

capacity/level-of-service analysis worksheets are provided in Attachment 2 for existing conditions,
Attachment 3 for 2015 future without-development conditions, and Attachment 4 for 2015 future
with-development conditions, ’

Based on the results of the analysis, the study intersections generally operate with similar conditions
under existing, 2015 future without-development, and 2015 future with-development conditions as
compared to the analysis results shown in the original transportation impact study. Futhermore, the
impact of the development is mitigated at the Paoli Pike/Boot Road intersection, and both site access
intersections operate at acceptable LOS D or better overall and for all movements with the traffic
generated by the proposed Dunkin Donuts.

Gap Study

As shown in the original transportation impact study, the capacity analysis indicates that the Boot
Road site access will operate at LOS E during the weekday afternoon peak hour only. Since this
access is located approximately 515 feet east of the signalized Paoli Pike/Boot Road intersection, it is
likely that there are more gaps in the Boot Road traffic stream for use by side street traffic at the Boot
Road site access intersection than are assumed in the capacity analysis, which does not account for
the extra gaps created by the traffic signal, In order to determine the actual gaps in the Boot Road
traffic stream at the Goshen Village Shopping Center access, our office completed a gap study in
September 2014 during the weekday afternoon intersection peak hour (from 4:45 PM to 5:45 PM) at
the Paoli Pike/Boot Road intersection. The results of the gap study are summarized in Table 3, and
the gaps study counts and detailed calculations are provided in Attachment 5.

Table 3. Gap Study Summary
Number of Effective Turning Movement Adequate Available
Movement
Gaps Volume Gaps?
Southbound Goshen
Village Shopping Center 188t 66 Yes
Access Left-Turn
Southbound Goshen
Village Shopping Center 4442 68 Yes
Access Right-Turn

1. Based on the number of combined gaps in the Boot Road traffic stream.
2. Based in the number of westbound gaps in the Boot Road traffic stream.

As shown in Table 3, there are more than adequate gaps in the Boot Road traffic stream for use by
side street Goshen Village Shopping Center Access traffic. Based on this evaluation, it is likely that
traffic exiting this access in the future will experience less delay than reported by the analysis, and
the access will operate acceptably during the weekday afternoon peak hour with the traffic
generated by the proposed Dunkin Donuts.




Mr. Louis F. Smith, Jr.
August 6, 2015
Page 3

Revised Site Plan Review

The revised site plan (see Figure 3) provides modifications to the drive-thru facility as well as
provides a right-turn only exit lane from the main parking field to the Boot Road driveway. The
drive-thru modifications separate the queuing from the general parking field which will reduce
conflicts. Further, the drive-thru lane will accommodate approximately 12 vehicles so as to reduce
the potential of drive-thru spillover into the parking lot or drive aisles. Based on observations by
McMahon at other Dunkin Donut stores, we do not anticipate a queue to exceed the available
proposed queue storage for this facility. Also, this drive-thru configuration will also reduce the
number of pedestrian-vehicle conflicts compared to wrap-around drive-thru facilities seen at many
other fast food restaurants that require customers to walk through the drive-thru queue at least one
if not all of the building entrances.

In addition, the right-turn only turn lane to the Boot Road driveway will improve the traffic
circulation within the shopping center by allowing some exiting traffic to avoid utilizing the main
drive aisle along the store frontages. This modification will be more convenient for all customers
leaving the shopping center (and destined to the Boot Road access) and will reduce vehicle-
‘pedestrian conflicts along the store frontages.

If you have any questions, or require further information regarding the above analysis, please do not
hesitate to contact our office,

Sincerely,

| 72 T

John J. Yurick, P.E., PTOE, PTP
Senior Project Manager

JY/TDG/ab
Attachments

P:\814440\ Correspondence\ Client\Patel TIA Supplement 25-08-04.doc




0oy '8¢ 9'9¢
a a a
66 26 3
v v v
6L gyl €L
g a q
92 09 314
2 o) )
o[y 32y Je sajerado JuRmRAOA (1) Ly €T 0z 89y (237 9'EY
v v v a a a
9T g0 z0 TE 17 0T 80T 807 €0z
v v v v v v jo] o] o
08T 481 941 ST 91 g1 00 00 00
MR
a o] o] v v A4 v v v
00 00 00 029 19 685
WSy
4] (49] 9] am A4 A Y 2 S Y
nmyy, 01 60 6'0 14 042 992
v A4 v o] o] o)
® M @ nayg i e o e o e
601 901 €01 8 W54 €28 99 sy 868 £49¢
g g g ¥ a a a a a a
‘AR a3 e
WAWM | Sumsixg WM | o Sunsy MAWM | Sunsmg
10z PI0Z <07 7102
OH Head BUHOI feps AROH eI BUTHHON Uep1o:
$5300y x9jue)) Surddoyg pue axq1g rjoE] proy j00g pure a1 1[oeg

XTHRI 91A3G-50-1349T T 9[qR,




9 55 08 0sg
74 9% 221 08
> €1 £1 oot
377 002 029 0001<

Mop 995 Je sorerado Juoursaoi (1)
31 ort oel 0001« 2 a sy 00t
sy s € - 3nrAyer 11 g s 06 0 0 [ 00
iy [ [ 0 st 589 s¥9 s19 o00at<
[(] 0] (0 w
st st €© 008 81 91 091 szt
4] [$9} 144] @ 8 €1 H oot €€ SYE SEE 0001<
8 € 0 ost s [ 4 8L oot 881 133 [ ose
ARQIM | AgInopim | Supsixg DQyIM | seainoyim | Supsxg A0 QUM | ARG INOYIM | Supsixa u
SIT $10C (1223) g 10T 100 (1) eFesaig 5102 iz @) serong
. Sunepey - Sunricg Supspxg
ORI Suntop Aepas 4 i O AT Bunad prAupaw i Opy A3 Bunuopy ATpaiaa
8530V X9jua) Surddoysg puc proy jooq §6900Y XJUID mﬁmmMoAm pue 31y oey PrOY 3004 PUT MX] X[org

XEJEIAL NN IR [GG T IRL



Smpr 2mBNG0~pT0T auoalddng pTI\SoMINZHP) $¢§M§ 7
SUINNYTd T SUTINIONI NOILYLYOISNY UL

NOLLY WoW B

Yd ‘ALNNOD ¥ILSTHD ‘dIHSNAOL NIHSOD LSV
JHINHD DNIddOHS DV TTIIA NHHSOD - SLONOA NIXINNA

SSWN|OA 2JIel] INOH Yead buluiopy Aepyasm

I FANDIA
T =34
N To
© =N
2=od g
@ M o<
LHON GIZITANNVHO I )
LY SHNDO0 INTWSAOW = ©
ANOH WY3d WY ININLOTIAIA HUM sLoz  [6] 2= 3 W..
AUMOH ¥vAd NV INIWDOTIAZA LNOHLIM SL0Z  (5) NS « =
UNOHMVAd WV ONILSIXZ & o 0
YEGER] = =
— T|E e
£ 22
s mw%_mmwmwrma 3 ] s.ﬂv ~— $8T mmmwmwomw
- oge(rip)iviv] eellzenipil -
{ozoz 'y'g) B (0z20Z "4'S) L ~— ggz{ooe)s0c] « a Liv(oey)Lyvl
Avod 1008 [egsl(e9)6e0 — [eol{0gRses ~ 11~ AVOH 1008 rasilzs0lees —- E:Mmm_‘wmﬁL 1t [ogl(vraleze —
2 [sovllsghlvby — | . o
E® vlizyioy— | 288
o= =53
=
=S
or,
'
— L=2]
S =e= NN
=t o
© ~ @~ oo
Q\ Frmd nlJ\O = N
S ) SR Qe
vl g JEe
| = ¥3INID ONIddoHS ___ ~— 9¥(6s)6iL]
w G FOYTTIA NFHSOD
gE lssl(gz)0z — Lelpzy 4 {74
i :‘&G:ml« oo
> a3,
= S
= W o
73 0=
dwag o m .I.M
oz o) SH =
“Puviayse =
-
gt
Peoral [
7 g | =
~ =
| 3
v 1,



Bup'z 2.mBA\60-pT0Z JuouRIddng VIT\SomB) SMp\0B 5y 19500\ T
SUINNYIL T SAUIINIONI NOILVILIDISNV YL

Vd ‘ALNNOD YALSTHD ‘dIHSN/X\OL NIHSOD 1Sv3
NOHV WoWPW yaINT) ONIJIOHS 2OV TIIA NEHSOD - SIANOJ NINNA

9DINISS JO S[OADT JNOH dead buluioin Aepsaa/m

Z UNSId
£3
Lo
=9
o=
NOIS dO1S ONILSIXE %~ =
TYNOIS SlddvuL onNiLsXE ) 0.
j*)
INIWIAOW/ANYT ONILSIXT  weed NEX
UNOH MvAd Wd INSWJOTIAIA HLIM S10Z  [v] ] _H
UNCH MVId WY INTNHOTIAZC LNOHLIM L0z (V) Zx
. UNOH Yvad WY ONILSIXA v g m
* — © [ ovn]
EGER] = gy
o) S5
o 8Q
] IL) e
alalla
(0202 'y'S) ¥ s(a)dl (0202 H'S) - ® £
Qvod 1009 - Qvod 1009 [l(0)o 2 J q qv
vliv)v Y EE@3— | 11 + _lda
TIvHaA0 g MWW=y | 555 TIVE3A0
= DL,
4
Lgje
R
J]|Ed vy
. H3LINID ONIddOHS ® TIVHIA0
% ] FA9VTTIA NIHS0D [aa)a J ﬂ.
<= [aXa)a
=2 ¥ ==
¥ =
EE ==
T 2.
o0 o.
g o nn_,u“
oI jopr 9%
u..ﬁSQE\u_m.
Fgomy




Bup'e 2.mB11\60-4 102 1ama1ddng yIz\samB\2mp\0pp 18\Suo\;T
SUINNYIY ® SAUFINIONI NOILVLIIOJSNY UL

Vd ‘ALNNOD YALSTHD “dIHSN/AOL NIHSOD 1Sv3
NOHY WoWPP ya1NTD ONIddOHS IDVTTIA NTFHSOD - STANOA NDINNA

uejd 23S
€ JANDIH

LWL Ay D ———r—
3 - fdmadand el EESEREEEE L m e s e X
i e e e e i (R 0Z=,L: 0lp3s
L e S e T e Isalis AR Tl T3 LNINDT3AIARY 0350408d 40
T 1o T yea) N WOS ¥ hniney ‘09 TESRIRIEIEREEE o EismSeneey : vady Jg.mm_
YRR Y SRl T AN
o SHE e SEEmAEe e SEERIRITLTENSE
& T I S
e e T i e S o e
39VTIA NIHSOO A et :
434 QBVRNd ey Ty oo | s | DTENEEEAEE S 'y
Y d LU3SNI 2= = i Lo Ch T -OF ¥ [0f T-5H
usig g :3 ayl,

- * S Nt '
BHnD KW n.zd_ N v.n/. QIR0H08

33%1// I/Lré
TR _k\,f

C\
i
1

nan % 08 We-SH
Loig Aug Wy Wiy,

226361 (I K cadpUd AVLAMAD B
TISYIARSE byl 1O pbI0ADY TURLLNY g 08 Sul

=
N

Udyie SIS skt TUDLD) AL3da
19 1 L Gedeead)os i

EBAY L DOT pamans fue Rl 2C 1O M »Qwaonnza

N
"“)
/
\ \
} A

».
“oion T

O A ] LRI aY
LIV SN 3T HZLINTY ON

@

)
o
2 g . .
H 3 CIROBIENY DUENE -
H Q . T
3 -
u 2 - B {
% ety A pagdent . X ‘ }
R ¥ e :
LR N LA e - 3 : ]
Y Cutm o 4n LG £ Rl >
LR e e A — 5] i * T T .
i Lt N o 5
TNCNTH TIVE 4O I @ v\ @ ~ — "t H _ w \..v
FEUYTVIvE SOV Suveyd Wr [ .\. . _ L _ | _ R /

" , s .

. g . .,A., o -
{dan) zua XTYKESOHI % . \/ .
HYRSICT TISO0U . .

) IV .
W\N\Wﬂa . ' B e, — \V :
L o 5 o, ﬁ"_ _ [ o~
o . 1 A .\

LI L L bk

NS
C
d.d
i
¥
gr
1.
SRl
32“\*"‘1
i

R
)
o

F
1L

-S:n_; s d..m-
(duLd has NTVMSSOMD 4 e e

KIS0 QIS0J0US

IS YIYNSIIHD AYCLCNDY UNdetkd T
fewsson) Ruvpry

pmr

NSIOUD T
n! "

:
Haniteete X2 WTL g% m 5 e ppiadne R
Sl HIhAR RN

Tt

”

3Ensonn
:Jﬁ»nmmona,_r_

Xum.unokﬁ.an

My u.o :.Ecza / / h
vd QIANGRD:
A R
E_t?n alon

!
;_. e -

,_







NcMahon Associates Inc.

425 Commerce Drive, Suite 200

Fort Washington, PA 19034

Municipality: East Goshen Township File Name : egoshenbootO1whr
Location: Paoli Pike & Site Code : 81444401
Boot Road . Start Date : 9/3/2014
Counter/Board #: HR PageNo :1
Groups Printed- Passenger Vehicles - Heavy Vehicles -
Paoli Pk Boot Rd Paoli Pk Boot Rd
Southbound Westbound Northbound Eastbound
Start Time | _teft] Thru| ROR] Right| Left] Thru| ROR| Right| Left| Thru] ROR| Right Left| Thru] ROR| Right [ int Total |
07:00 8 107 0 i 28 7 0 0 4 102 2 13| 53 94 0 10| 494
07:15] 15 149 0 1] 23 80 0 0 0o 8 15 6] 53 98 0 9 536
07:30| 12 131 0 ol 37 717 0 0 5 70 3 21| 31 116 o 1 514
07:45| 18 127 0 o] 31 60 0 1 1 8 13 15{ 39 98 0 10 501
Total| 53 514 0 2| 120 288 0 1] 10 349 33 55| 176 404 0 40| 2045
08:00 6 132 0 ol 35 T 0 0 3 85 9 22| 44 120 0 16 543
08:15| 13 158 0 o] 30 74 1 0 4 113 7 42] 35 110 0 9 506
08:30] 14 114 0 2 925 58 0 0 3 o 9 28| 3r 119 0 9 509
08:45 9 87 0 11 34 51 0 1 0 79 10 23| 41 108 0 121 456
Total| 42 401 0 3| 124 254 1 1] 10 368 35 115] 157 457 0 46| 2104
Grand Total| 95 1005 0 5| 244 542 1 2] 20 717 88 170| 333 861 0 85| 4149
Apprch%| 86 91 0 05| 308 687 01 03] 21 735 7 174, 28 673 0 67
Total % | 23 242 0 04} 59 13.1 0 o] 05 173 16 4.1 8 208 0 241
possengerVetices | 92 963 0 5| 224 514 1 2| 20 692 68 152| 320 833 0 81| 3967
s Passongar vetiaos | 96,8 95.8 0 100] 91.8 948 100 100} 100 965 100 894| 961 967 0 942| 956
Heavy Vehicles 3 42 0 0| 20 28 0 0 0 25 0 18] 13 28 0 5 182
%HeavyVehicles | 3.2 4.2 0 ol 82 52 0 0 0 35 o 108| 39 33 0 58 A4




McMahon Associates Inc.

425 Commerce Drive, Suite 200

Fort Washington, PA 19034

Municipality: East Goshen File Name : egoshenboot02aRR
Location: Boot Road & Site Code : 81444402
Paoli Pk Northbound Right Channelization Start Date : 9/3/2014
_Counter/Board #: RR Page No :1
Groups Printed- Passenger Vehicles - Heavy Vehicles
Boot Road Paoli Pk Right Boot Road
Westbound Northbound Easthound
Start Time Left] Thru Left | Right Thru | Right Int. Total |
07:00 0 1] 0 21 0 0 21
07:15 0 0 0 29 0 0 29
07:30 0 0 0 18 0 0 18
07:45 0 0 0 23 0 0 23
Total 0 0 0 91 0 0 91
08:00 0 0 0 20 0 0 20
08:15 0 0 0 28 0 0 28
08:30 0 0 0 19 0 0 19
08:45 0 0 0 22 0 0 22
Total 0 0 0 89 0 0 89
Grand Total 0 0 0 180 0 0 180
Apprch % 0 0 0 100 o 0
Total % 0 0 0 100 0 0
Passenger Vehicles 0 0 0 162 0 0 162
% Passenger Vehicles 0 0 0 90 4] 0 90
Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 18 0 0 18
% Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 10 0 0 10







Yuday g alous kSR IWBLSIXaP}(Z oquiedes - 2 UOISSIONSISISARUYRIR L\ Dby 8\PuaY] yoday g olyouAg uks'yEed WYBUNSIXe\p) 07 J9GUsidog - 7 UOISSIUGNSISISARUVIOEL\ DY G1BUSKT

e 06E__ 06 .. O%E c.mz,...Q.mlic.ml{ﬁ{is,%sp.m!!o.m{xxlz...Amv,_g_:_.sa i

e gt e T e T L Beud s

g7 9 i Y R 2 S -t

LR TSR 2 ) g DTy LT sesdudpaneg

' 9 | 4 TV TR e R 2 T _ Sased paysioid
Y U - W RO &ﬁ:@&... YNl TN a,én_;w; T adAfng

!..!.i!.oa -{couo!.,;o.c 00, o.o w00 (8) A28, 190

00 - 00 (48 ' (s} dnanp | Joi021a

c“a. 21.,.,85: :z,.‘c,o 00 2. (s pusng | sojomag

Joliileg’} J0103j3Q

v@a G T ) m&

» . adAL ) 20108150

R I Dt A TN T T sts L assieg

- _Q ¢ Ty T e s g_aﬁe.te.u%a

TN U VP T S T ) o BufeiL

3 § s § s s ""{y) ojosjeq Buipesy

S TR TRNG N 1 AL LTS T Sy lofdiEg

! :ir:i; ff S | slopapg josaquiny

Loy e T S - sl 7 (yduy paadg Bununy.

607607 __ mo‘fis.f,.,mi.imo.f...s.r{s.v;zs.r.iﬁF e doped fempesy

e i ] e Aem oL

.8 [T K T ?.z.:,.g,%_%_gmeo

e P 0 g T T T iesio

B B T 1 e < S " Tutapud vetpo

e T VAT, T e Ty TR WY Cusi TR MBM wel i Wwawuily adeT

oN aN N oN oN oN ON N oN oN oN oN uoyoasI payosig e

Syl el W0 W $s e 88 W90 0.z e (i s dnosg auen

e iz o . ) oy sue paieds

BT iseseud puE SIS T T TN NS N PR TR TN T T T e oy

’ ’ %0 %Y §.§..§_,.,i°\,m,...\§|3§:....§. %G %0 %S \,m(-:-..i,,§3_§m>§mx

: e - R A UL TENOS 160 anm 180 160 .,,.%w.:;.o‘, 180 Wm% _g0 ;.a.‘.-wm:. X s_ﬁu%uww..__uﬂm

S Sy o 0B 2(oK) fRIMEN taeg T T SR C R T T .g 200=sa YU

“HOTIA 10 18IS TLE5TY BUE T1gN+.85Eyd 01 pealialajay | “240),0,38540 B : - R

&{] iaudn §joAg paEnioy S - * (ud) paadg yury

T 1iB0S 5940 b U U e (4OTH) maid Pieg

T ol AL edly ) SO, .., R—" . LT peduouwinLyion

Josp T BGLV T 0. BELL. 89, gest 0. T (uwdd) mdd pieg

, 180 _ Mg 1280 0eva T penusdd

xms.é;u.%”u]mcmz . ﬁ:.olw%z!ﬁ%z{mmz SUON SUON __3UON apop 1iegsy IGETS00 oeol T O . . eeLk  LoLb o oesh  ewd 62O 0 Is8L L8l (joid) maid ‘MES

OF Dt 0% ... 0e OB 0F. U 0E. ... 0% OF " (Y HBISIER3 3y0iap 0560 0860 %ma. I OO . L

. e i | berudg Be-pes] e B

bej e pedy. i CBef peay Bl pesi L By Wi DS AT N A S R N Tl

08 0g_ 0% (5) ot 507 [0 SR A e 8 : e e :g e tade.

SO O o I i (5)151lpy aldi| 507 e L0 v SauET abRIg

A A 2 02,07 (s) awny pay-iy 05E .. oo L ) B 7S T - S I1€ yibiia7 ebeiois

PN TSN N -V WA O A P A LT S R Wi T e T EaleE

ozy_ O 0 O 05 05 _ O¥_ 08 ove__ 08 ]xnﬁ.v.mﬁmpsgﬁs_ 4] L O T T T ) iy aue]

hOTE USTE O, . %Ay %0h %yl HEYE %hedh. - %EVE %eeTh. . (%) 16§ te0L, 0081008l 008b 008} 82 0085 008l | 00BL 0081 e:.e 008i__008_ .?,.ﬁ_gs,,ﬁ.ﬁ%_

gy 0%y 07h ozh 007 O Ok ) (s) ids egol. 7 Tese el 0 wvs sy ey Ty TUep 0, ver e {ydn) aumjop

iy ¥ r ] ¥ L ¥ 4 " SuoyeinByuoy aue

e e A

RS

i :mmsrtpmzérm_., ¢ AN LEN e D L O [ E TR E i
Sy o AN T O N a4

peoy j0og 2 9id Io.d L peoy 1008 B 9Mid Hoed :}
sead Wy Bunsixg 102 Usyso9) Jseg ~ SiNuoQ uung Mead Ny Buisixg ¥1.02 usysog) jseg - synuoQ ubung




Yoday g ogouAg UASHEAd I BLISIXOpLOZ SquiBidas - 7 UOISSILGnSSISARUVIOHRA N0 v §\BuaT

'SSa00y aBeA UGUSOD § old 0B 7 “Saseld pue SIS
pojeupIoas-paeNioy adk L fonuog
e e e o 61 140 feaileN
o SORAITYES 1859 Eu Eza mwmﬁ a Es_e&é ‘(9h82) € Fasho

o . . BB Bud 21040 paiEnioy
Si), “pEuaT 8jAy

BELTTe) Sk Ceay

opgasIay

WD S0ON YERRD, XEF-G . GWON: -GN, . - SPON[lesed
0e 0% Ot 0% 0% UE " (s] vorsuapea sogen

- - . o T U Janundo Be-pea]
e pEai by el T heypeR)
7909 09, 09 0§ .08 I X TIRE ] ST

Ol O o O —(S)sifpy ati jso7

A KA Y AT VAR A I .. (5) Sui{ peiFv

(o) aunt moyeA

AT - I N R T
L swﬁ TS YT

FOSL 08
NG BN B

$5300Y SDE|)\ UaUsoD) § iid [oed 2

yead WY Bulsixa 102 UBYSOS 1583 - SINUOQ UNUNg

paday § ououAs UAS Ra W\BUSIG\Y 07 Je0ua)dag - 7 LaISSIUAngSISARUVARIL 0 YL BuaLY
oM 0w 0Ly 080

Y A A A

ommcn_;s_;m
selid J0joeiag
ey papiued
o TR T 588U paloditid
R W T e sy wing
007 TEE 00 00 T (VERG J ooEEg
kg o 00 00, 00 " (s)enang | Joaiaq
SRR ) VR 8 {8) pudiicy ) Toajeq
_mccmno rhguﬁoo

T XaD, Y, a0 ... BOAL | JOEEA

T i,.mlll.m\‘ngl‘iov.l»»|! (U)szs | 2093580
SO T O gg isod }, J3E8a

3100 ms__m:.

. o at%%o Biijped
= ajedway Jojosleq

Ty " “gqysiac o Jaquiy

66 (i) pesdd BhmL

i S S T A5 N L A 1 108 ABdigRaH

Gy e any
- (WP HEMSSOID
{Wliesio Tt
(Ui ueipapy
JuatBly aue]
- - aRoRsTal] payaolg Jaug

s 0z _ 6 B8L_ . L ludi) e Aigjd dnoso auet
o ) " (o) ouifEs ) SuiE paiElS

{idn) inoid oy
g sojafidA Ana
Jope Jnoy yeed
" (5) auil) faAgs)
* ) soumsig un
@E fosds Y]
oLy moid ‘mies

¥ B zm&.
aNTLON N,

vell | mmmi&am 929} 1 3& CTREL L (wed) mad pies
T 7i086°0 ‘pafweg i
be2h_ Qb 69ghseol v - _ oud) Mol pes
: pamaid 14

ud
‘éumw _n: mcm..ﬁ
) bl jadel.
T saue BEEidlg
(i) jfueT seio)g
() Gipia ate
{deln) moy yespl

oty 00800

"

0L,

5000y SDE[|\ UBYSOD) B Mjid loed 2

sead NV Bunsixz 102 LaYsos) 158 ~ Sjhuod Upung




Hoday g o:youks ukemyead INY\BUISIXa\YL0Z Sequaidag -7 UO|SSILUGNS\SISARUVOIES L\O Y BABUSKT
- 50 (4=Al sin% W OH

o . - g T 0T aue WOl

- VM (s} Aepq 1anu) WOH

e FRONR J— . e ap0, o oed DIA 3l WOH

- 969 {yyeA) Ajoeded

LEMRTEMEHER wL B PUTBNS

LWAWO[B/RLET oM W

e e ZoaT e SGTRSH
s "Adag [ed WO

e e o e it G
Y T T vmmmaw
TaRnauRyy g-ded AOW
" LAy 11020 AOW
T L e e ot
e ek
L R - I . . [l
S %9 e -t 7 Janouep jdegod
Ll ee | BisE LA -1 S A L ke do-mood
B8 e e s e T zhisAvpiEaw
[, > : z - i 1. BIS ARPH a0

i.w

fiy Maid Bungijiicd

go_m yingy
AN AAESH
J6j284 NOK Yedd
e mnem i s s i 5peo
3# '6230)g URIDA U YA

i  pug e

] ~ PajSLELD 14
: 07ju0g ubis

E\* ‘Spag mEchoo

IENEN

PECY 1008 @ SUET] LINHYRIY peZyduuey) 0}
Yead v Bunsba 102 usysog) 358 - spuo( ubiung

Yoday g QOUAS UsHERd WV\BLNSINAYpL 07 JB0ILaIdE - 7 UDISSHUQNS\SISARUVOHELN Y77 Uy
T e I e pazieuBisury :9dAL joqiog
- T ’ B sso wadk], Baly

TRIELILING UoRoeRIs|U]

- dogg  @erd __oead lanuo) uflg

B Ty, T e TR T ) FRedg Bum]

0wl 00 00l 00 . Wb Wt 10y Aempesy

. SO o LD sumlinLye fem oL
— et i(|;!E....I....!ql):...(.lmr-s, S | .Evéu_gxmm;mmo...o
T T T T T L e o P‘ T Whedoyiiy

O I i i .@,ﬂ‘.tﬁmf;...ﬁﬂ T
oN oN _ ON oN_ 5;8&35 payaolg Jalug

T o, S TTeW o 0 TTheE_ - (udn) mojddnaigyaue

L T lwley ateTparls

DR SO R [ T4 S (gAY motd oy

%8 e, ‘.l_.\&,-!e«,l .g«iiﬁ!.l.u!.g Sojoiyan Anesiy

- R 050, 060 - 060 080 080, 060 .. fieEdinoniesd

88 2% ¥ (s) alii fangay,

.. ) T 95 - o . . . gor T ) St

0.5 L {4dw) poads yory

TTTTTTTREL. 0 .6ese 0. 000k T {uiad) MO PIES

o . PR3 114

CTomdy oo eese 0L ol lioid) majd pleg

B B i e e T peeeaidid
S (- e e 8
e e e oo et e 00y 0G4 mm,o;,s.rt, T T e i due
e e e e 0% et %) S

e 008 _008)_ 0061 00} 3 (j9ycln) mord jeap]
. I | o . {ydn) suinjop
m:a_umamccoo auety

sead WY Bunshba y1.02

PEOY 1004 *§ aueT WiniHydy psziisuuey) 0l
UBYSOS) 15T - SINUCQ UUNg







yodey g anouAg WA Yead JBISIXo\p} 07 Jequaidag - 2 LSS SISAEUYILR 1y b BBUS]

0 Emé.c 1% 1S6 WOH

. SOTWOH
S Euo joiueg WOH
peciddy

NI - SO T LTI T
- - | abeig
L = o T T e g e R
T N ) ST ,._.m>=mcm§ 1de Aan
- i B . T ey edieid
- by - - 73S
e . L S TP T peEag
- - - 589 hm>=mcmz 1-deg 10d
e BN i e L mTTEC e LI e ool
e - - ST T S A D
- e e e :.Bws H
SO T {2 g

i ol Buysifued

AT AiEay

Jojed neH jead

. . .\___mnﬂw

: - . I D BRI UER U YA
SRR 4 C T ieusyabeios
ET pazjalitieyd Ly

SR ™ S RO I E o o R
0___0 7 ‘sped gﬁago

THyEnon

SE00Y SDEIIA UaysoD) 3 PEOY 100 €

sead Ny Bupsx3 ¥1.02 UBYSOD) 158 - SINUOQ UBLNG

yioday § OWaUAS LA ESd INBUISIa\y) 07 Jaguiaydas - 7 UOlSsIGnSISIsA Uy ORIy Yy VBt

“pezieuBisUR RAKT josueg
.aso sadh) ealy
Kewing uonoesiajy

dag sold  dUd {ospuog UBiS
e T s R T T TUET T i) pesds Bunl
e e i e I /1 w0 PO SO SOh. 10104 Aeapesy
S alier i Yoy Am oML
CONA (Wi iemsso)

.. . .. e e {uhesoAur
) - (ulypig uetpag

: RLS T IR 0 - e, D weunyaue

oN topdesiau[ paoolg seiua

| g 77T () mer dioip sue)

. T e ey et paeys

15 20 T . Ay moid oy

RO .| S, n\.cwz!,(%l.»ﬁﬁ mmﬁ_ﬁ\,@wm:

e e 0 60, b0 160 10 .. "~ J65e dnoHieed

Ve e TE . ($) s} janes)

i 33 ovE T (Y ebumsigien

N 2 . -,.-....‘.Aﬁs;wommé:

o, mg RETTNA ) “(utisd) ML Pies

- 056°0_ __pepuad i

] FETTRE (joid) Mol “pies

0860 ... .. PeRR0dld

BB e el

ool ook T GOF o0 lopey fnaue]

s .. (§)gpusyedel

R i:f- . satie aBes0l

U ) g5 7T ) tnbus sbelig
e s S )
- . .: W 1! (1) Ui auey

,,,,, 008} Smr!.gaiil%Qg&%mag_
’ €9 T {yda) swnjop
SuoneinGjuoy sue

600y S0 USUsoD 1§ Peoy 1008 €

¥ead INy Buispa #102 : UsySO9 1583 - Sinuog upiung




yioday § ANIUAS UAS YeBd NYINOUI §L02W10Z Joquialdag - 7 UoiSSILiangIsIsAleuyioes Oy e1Busti

S0 0407 NOH

AEB0 113 0102 WOH
ABWIING; UONRSIaIL

7 T 00 s {omd)auill e Uda19
:o.vm m E.vamm :. Qms._..,mﬂocxms

.vuqﬂi,.&.mw.. 0. T T 0 Sbelid) Sifjeg Teao A
ﬁll.,. *{ayA) poliad 26URYD
18 TS oA D) WOEING SUd

3 Siyd peubissy

e, e o e e

ot vom B0l

a SO yoeoxddy

TR T S e ugoiddy

[V 4 UYaA oA yoeoiddy

Y. 8- .3 Q... 0. [ T T« NN« W -507 4947
o.:‘i.zw §0 e el G 0¥ LI 00§ 03 s p)feleq diot]

B A ) g0 e ge 00 Hj5ER (754192-010%088 3%

2 x. D.o..,soaliqol,- 0 l.:,sﬁzm.ag.\a_macﬁas

0. : AN 4 A L T yans (zp) Aejaa ol

A g \S. . ez 00 0ee_ €% 00 S ﬁzm.e ) Aefaq uuojiun
660 e 880 0007 o6l 00k 000, 007 Torh o0 00 007 . @gmsme sdn

ooz 007 ooz oo ook Uk T00h ] CooET Tovh ool ool 00%

887" 89 | BOZ._ TTyeevey zes.  6CE 0 @S 0L .

120 e90_ 601 “Tavg o000 80 2SO So Nm,o-iﬁ.oz:{:.».

86" ps9 T nss . 0. “yag e ees_ 62e- 0. . e 80T ﬁi%m.um@mﬁ
gﬁiill;ssu_- " oo s-,e.s;g‘_r‘ 0 :9:. %80 S s S suzT U dotd
o TTER TR0 00 RE L ees. 00 Ve [T TN S .ﬁému_ucmgo
97 _ & m.Pi-E.i:Em1;~N,...\2). .,L,.%-i P! o0 se. gL o s'sBavesy
06T TS0Lb_bedi_ U T eELk 9OLL ek 8vdb o £ES 0o . LT RS R i 18g dip
T A ¥l9 5§ 0 00s 04 0 e 15k Yydh (Rauinjon di9

706 .01, t29). 0 ... 6eL. . 90Lb . OESh - 8pib  EESE O yLib  BLSk \/yen ‘mojd 18g

.Q.a ED?.36{.38.o.i;,;cx. $0°0___000_ 0€0__ 800 __ 000 060 _ 800 .. Jea) uQ anty
TTye9 -GSk . 0r . BOL $m-.!$¢ g5 ege 0. H..;N%...,mow R Hyendeg
w ¥ £ ] ki 0 ) :m>§morgcauhom
_‘md L) a:lvmo 180 _I60 160, -E.o;! rmo LT sagoed dnol Yead
) . :\1, ,i..i_.i!ir.uxl. S .zat.vi-!. oV V. seuElotoNiy
SN VU T T S - O 008 el 0. ..uE s gan “Giee Word [pY
3 s.mou., !\Di.!.mﬁ_‘.,i,_‘m? ,...008 \..3?, R 1?-@55..%3, :EE? ‘Mol s oy
00y 00, 00th T o0, 007k . 00, 00 067 007 L O0L. . . [Py 'shg B
ook ooh oo ook oo :oo.r, oo on..sa‘«mv_“me&

.Pl)l- S oo s o .0 o L0 i
m._‘.l,lmi.l..vl;l«.ﬁllulim e, e e oWy bR
66h - it e, 0 ___gss_ 05 Iy oSSV S5 R - L S (gaAY tuniop
P T vy ok ¥ L ‘SucfeiBjueg aue

NesmteSinsIaS Ny HEN

L A

peoy 1009 B Mild 1108d
WiaudoeAS( NOULM Yead INY G102 UsYSO9) 151 - SINUOC UMUNG




yoday g o1GaUAS WAS'HERd PUYRTOUM G102 07 J20Usidasg - 7 UolssIung\siskizuviowes \0ppr giBuay

S070407 WoH

G150 193 04 0Z:NOH
ABLWINGUOT08IA
0D s (5d) aiin] jxg 103lp

N S Ty ST Suil sealn 0 XEW
, . o' " §(weliiD) Blimad teaisy e
o L s

g T ouekeD) wopeing Sud

. SOTymeaddy

T ,;mf.%u%_mo yogciddy

WiaA ‘joA Yoediddy

- v, v .4 -3 . _____ _$01%5n
G0 80109 .,,_N 25, oNs(pikepqdint]

O R 7 ey B G e e

.ge\x,.eo‘lxo..c--.l: (,_3%%_89% |

X S ays *(ZpYAeiea 1au

- Ty Ty on oo Eve b mwzm.e:%oﬁes

o000k sb0 " Tev0 o 00 00k 414 wedisdn

R ci,...g.N odz 00k 00} ‘oney UoCiELd IWOH

“agzyeve), var T 05e. L den (eolded ey

e L L0, (X)oney /A

e e . 8yEL e A o)deD i auey
), 00 .-i-.Sr.!S;.!(\-. aue u| delg

. o - E0. X B A §(7BYied}0 O 30
€0 000 0 60 T o s ‘(S"Bjenisg O

o e TRyl ke  2BaY_beek LEL. :,i,_h_\é_w\,.,@so_ﬁmm diy
bes ez ¥E €94 0L Sb UyEA ‘(jsumidp dio

et e T WELL. whF, GESL_ge9h _wegvo JE o YU MOEES
830 __TO0_ 00 Q0% ,s.o! KL u_@o:omz&

;i%.,.m;r;os A aé g8 " UE T R deg

Ty ¥ e se T T o aA Aea udolad

el ,mmo.- T e, mm ‘0. 860 8o‘..11.,,..,-,,5_%%3:%&

L saueJ0 "ON a<

Uien ‘Eey 014 |

" obi, . DUgan maidles E
o [p¥y 'shg Bupjiea
00 . ed iy sEpad

0 ©_Yon (g0} 0 eyt

n.!..!,.,-i-;. _ J3dunN

Vi T T R Sioy
mceﬂszm o7y ueT

PL A

4

55000y ODE||/\ UaUsOD B iid !0ed T
Juswdojersq NOUIM deSd INY 5102 usysos) jseg - snuog unund




.

yoday § QyIUAS uksyead FINOLM 510210z JqU3eag - 2 LOISSI [SAEUIBRL\O YY1 BB

{yoaJD) 3% Wigs NOH
501 3uET WOR
" [8) Zepag o5ue WOH
oifey] /A e WOH

Eﬁa zam%o

13 umﬂw
.a>=u=m§ i -de 5 ROR
" jaknavep 1-deg Aoy

5 PRi00j D00l

| =g
JaAnauepy 1=deg jod
Ampy] dn-mojjod

N BiG AMpH JE9H0

Mo Al
o SapIeA ARBaH
T_loje4 anoy ead

K % ‘opRin
R :.l&_n.umasw RIPSN L UBA
sl G ‘oBels

ECTNEE

)

g 05g

{odjud?) uBiS
i epdd U0

[IEINEI
USUIBNOR

5o .ﬁzms%es
oasiai]

S500Y SBElILA UBUSOD 3 PEOY 1008 €
usysos) 188 - SINUOQ UMuNg

jusLudotane( NOUNM Yeed INY 102

yoday g syouks s Ead WO G107 H07 QUSRS - 2 LOSSIUNG|SIsARUVIREILDP 1 QUM

paz) B TdAL fosjuag
1990 BdAL BRlY

ey

[ &

O NETOR L S N [

g.c.“.-g vl 0 S0b_ SO

)

m:m._ i >m§ oM,

. S o0 e T )Py YEwSSOL
. - 0o ... 0. . . . (uiesyoun
S (P UBtpR
. T : Cger Ty Wi " yawubllyaue
o oN~ ON az Tioyoastajy] paoolg Jea
- .w;u el I, T (yda) Mojd dioyp ave
e  (55) anyea) 3ue pateys
i T e - dn) i oy
oS usE e . 7 (k) setoman nead
160 _}60__ emo So W0 dojaed dnoH Yead

Ve ,.m_& .Nm.,
e T Twmwb e L () soumsig yuly
s sy .5 — ‘2&5 u,um,a.w L}
el 8. . _U8LL__ASLy. Lk {widd) Mol pies

2880 e R 0S60_ .
. Tyl 0. [(CTAN LTI 1

. . .!.fl.lmmma-.; e 0SB0 Eume%m
L .ne0 e
. 00’ 00 0d°% Tofe i SUET
Sy .g yiusTade)

' _sauEy mmesm

RSN WA
\;.. -

SQ 82

006 00BH_ o8k, . ldudn)
s Tiey E ‘Esé_g

R

SE00Y SBE|IIA USLSOS) % Peoy 300 €

justudojeasd INCUNM Yead INV G102 Layso9 jses - sinuod upuna







yioday g oIyoUAS udsHiead WwBusxewy} 07 sequeideg - UaISSILINGISISABIVIOIR 0 vy 81BUa

[20n 1008 § 9¥ld {loed |} 59seyd pue Spds

! DPatRUpios] -GafEmoY [aA] janto]
e e 0 121040 [BATEN

bRk JO IS 1He1g PUE 118Nz 388ud of pasualajay "(94D) 0 49550

R Sl AiBuT Ao paEMRY

. o oS iy6us’ 30AY

40 ‘adA] eary

i BWLING UOTasIS|

N0 _XeNG SN :!%zu.mcmzlﬂsz Lo SUON JUON _ BUON _____Spo lieosy
ot "ot 0E .- TTge T ot ot 0€ 0% 1 (&) Esae adien

U ‘ o ¢ezupdo Be-peay
e B8§ T pes [ ;.nm._.i,mﬁlmmﬁlwmlﬁ.Inlmuxll-|,@.s... e BEVRER]
09 o908 oG8 _ 69 o8 _O0s 08 OS .. .. 5) 3wl 1507 leloL
S WOV O N RS N (5) ysnipy SUiL 10T
0T __ 0T 0T ... oT. bz 0T _ 0T [r A i (5) aulit, pay
BT v IR SO - 1 T S R SN ——— oy Slli\l;@ Bl MofeA
oy _ 0Ty 0% G5 0% i»eg»;ousxillqs og__ . ls)useig unuxely
%9y %9TY %YOL oy0b  %Y0L. S L hEYE %2 T T idS s
o5y 0%, L ) oy ~ (s)ydsEoL
0oF ot {s)ydg i

peoy jeog @ diid Hoed 1L

Jead INY Bullsx3 ¥1.02 uaysos 1883 - Sinuog upuNg

yoday 9 OIUAS uhsead WBURSXe\Y|0Z Jaquadss -2 UOISSILIGNGISISAIBUOLES HAOPPYLB\BuaVt

0BE__076E, o 0¢, 0 _ 0 et OB OE . () ey iy
e e e e o ., BSeld Laimg

Z 5 [ g ¥ L “aseijd J003190]

: i_N. m . m : i _saseld paguad

i “sasend PO

oty e %.a.s._.,.,...,z,.wag,.u, U s

I ..-ic”csl‘oa.llca-.. e ..oo_ 00 _{s) Refedi  J1019G

00, ot 00 .00 S0 T sy ahent ) dowdleq

oo 0o 00 o0 g0 . 00 " (e pusixa ) w30

I et v S U PR - Jeulleyp y Joi0Rle0
A0 o xaHo____*aHd_ X 33X mio xEy K9 A0 Mo edALpiopeEg
OO DO~ SN | A oo {iYedis) 0135150

S B S, o e .«o,lx!mi PR S __(wuonsod | Josiag
I :m.,. T Ac..;.-,m..:,. R T (i 20ioeyad By

e Tee & s & S S .S s __{u) Jojoajaq Bumpest
bl [T 2 N TV TR ) L T eedwsL J0siRg

b | | S S L ) 5100313(] JO J3QWNN

...... mv|imi-.1.,.l.|:2.ll.m--.l!:;.,.m_‘ . 11 o (udw) paadg Buwn
e s0_ 8080 0% A I T TR o T oed dewpesy
[ S L T dejunlia Ao O
SR | S— "G T G yenssoi
i e - O -,\!..:.i .::,!s!azumcov_c:
NfJ:x..i.. [ U < S ———p— o Wupmuepsy
B ye T YET THE we T, ¥ WeH T Tye) 99T sy sue

oN oN oN oN oN oN oN  ON  ON oN N oN " vonossiz payoclg Jejul
S M6 Wb 0. W Y5 MS_ e w0 TE o {tch) mopd dnougy 2ue]
?\ovuﬁﬂ._.

T L I 1 S U2 T A R S {4
%o W %y %0 %E %0 UE %S %0 %S WE ") s_gﬁiéx
W60 TIeTT 8T Ive0 TIsT 180 e (166 160 1B B0, 160 JG19e InoH Yead
R S TR oY s B {s) oy fanely
TTTos L L AL R - TR 777 () soumsig yun
B 2 | A, e st B 7 {yduw) poads yurt
F TN S | O L -  (HOLH) moipeS
mu> e mﬂ>l!\\l\|llll;lm.m>..1,|| BN lli:.\.uumcoEE.Em_m
Josh _Solb | AST_ BGIT. $99 .. Gest Lgvib 969 O .9k 80c. .. 7 (tuad) Moy pres
s }ED CowMeb T Toeewe o PeMSdid
7080 TdALy ozeL 0 Y AR T T7 U 98] 181 {joid) mold 'ples
. 0867 056°C C o ose0_ .. ....0se0 . PRIl
05870 [ TR, L e e ¥
P A TN T N Tl L R 06 007 T 1554 0 3ue
g Sy S IS ... (b} yibusysedey
b [ R R _ili..zl  Seue] at2ioig
g b .. .08 " (3 gt 36ei0s
T G (%) apei0
“ﬁ R S T ) | A T () i 2ve
el iga __ocel 0Bl 0@l O0BL . " (ciyla) anoid espl
7L 9se gk 0. Wy ek 0, ¥8L EEl (4dA) awmniop
,« r staneinbyuoy sue

G

Peoy J00g ¢ Siid llokd L

yead Wy Bunst ¥102 usyso9 1seg - sinuoq ukung

a




A, £ " ‘

yieday § onyaufs s Ead Y \BUNSIXR\yLOZ J5quisides - 2 UaISSILGRSIEAT VIO BBuaY yoday g anppulg ufsead NnBUSXa}0e sad - 7 UOISSIWNGIISA RV 1\ SbTYL VBB

O OM Oy Ol OB (s) yds wwwin

e T 00y 00v. 0% " {5) feptuy tnwiogy

5B Yoyms

RO U RO S 4 aseyd Jo0818Q

L SV "s35Eild pepluiad

A S & L " 'saselid pajoaidid

. ..u#e.u;@& CWN L dd ekl adéj ung

(G I g0~ 00 "7 s)Agjag | 2010910

g0 o0 00 00 00 {s) ananp 1. 00380

X M N C SO L S {s) puapa | dmddiaq

T — fguitegy § J00z8g

TR, DO X0 X0, BAL) S350

ST O 2 — “(iezs . iopaea

T oySod | J00%iRa

B PR O .S {y) Jcfdareq Buijet),

() ibjoeyaq Bilpes

Feidis) Jojogieq

(R NI IO NP L siomisq joaquiny

I < T () pasds BllnL

S L N Y A ~ Joied AeigEat

e g E:Zm._ femomL

| S | S (P ERSSOID)

[ IS . (unespoyuny

S I g ueipay

WeN Wl WEM YN ustuubfy ueT

oN N oN ToN ]  Uonoasiay] payaoig o

. }mmf B ek {ydamod dnoip v

N : Séezcm._uem__m

e & ‘el z..isi-.---: (i oy oy

) . . oy TN Y kL ST %2 (g SapgieA AREH

2LIDICO-PAIENDY sedAL |auo: - R o . mmox}.mmo €670 _ €60 €60 ~_ JoedJnap yead

— . . pa|eLInIo0]-Pay «c M E%my% T ) T e L (5) attl, [2nelL
e T T T ;Esw.n_w.m.m.@Em._mz&,u&ﬁo;&g%.m.c\muzﬁmgo s LN () s
IR L g1, inbus 3pAY pAEMOY e op st ... . () pesdsnn
o o e o e e ) b K0 _ ;ul\-,mll;si .ix..zao.@%m.%m

§ T T edALESlY . R . SBA .

e UIRG JI0To9sIa . Tt MMM_.oIl.II.e :
VEND SUON  YeW-d Xe-0 SuuN  oUoN TEpoy ey SR << A T SO E& %E Emm
o oppoge ge O og 0 (s)uosusieI aoeA e e paieaid
- e e LT yenundgbenpesy T T T - 0580 - X
- I I Beyped] T oo} N R L1 1 S Jojoed "y Bue
I 03, N S T (i) wBls j8dEL
[ R () yEnlpy BuLYS0Y T T T T gouie abeig
— . RSN, AN A0 N A IO PR (8) 3l pauiy e ST s ! - T ) ybeen deigs
- . 0% T fs) i oA o ! T (0Y o, 26
i ....oee T gy Usain wiixe L e ) .QESEESE
g\o.t u\&.ﬁ Tob) tdg 1101, (itdA) awnjon
-(5) 106S frjoL Siopeinbyuo) aue

i oIS euE LEN: w26 R DRE
t s ¢ Yy s b ¢4y
35600y SPEIA LSUSeD B iid 4oed T 5500y SDElI/ USUS0D B iid I08d T

ead Ny Bunsxg 1.0¢ uaysos) jsed - sjnuod ukund sesd WY Bulspd v102 usyseo jses - SINUOC UKUNG




" £

yoday g ook uksyead WBURSIXa\pL0Z Jequialdag - 7 uaisst \S{eAlRUIRL N0 P BUBY

AL .m.o suace_@smms_u:

. difey /A 2087 WOH
{tyyen) asm%o

TaRaleR 7-ded ASH

JeRnaep |deq Ao

5 péyaofg oGzl

Jannauely 1-deg 10d
Ly dn-mojjod

CLabyg T

__< ojz Bunoijus)

"o “Sapiian ANeIH
e )Jh.o..,um.m JnoH yeed
e 5} ‘Spein
4 ‘aliel0)g UBIDSIN U1 YSA
T pBuey sbeiols
BN__uc:,m.zu i
10369 bl
E\* .%mn_ Bunoue
“tipy3n A
RWIAO

ans ‘Aepa
L[oassau|

PEOW 100d § BUE] WNdybRy pezieuuEyd (0l

yead Y Bunsix3 102 usysog 1sBT - SINUoQ UNUNa

yoday g onoukg A Ead WV BURSIXaY} 07 J2qiadas - 7 UaISSIIGngSISAEUVOlEL 0P gVBuak

) dog  eald X )
R - Ty T g T T () paadg Buding
e A S S S N Joyae ] hempesi]
e X _ R o ,u:ﬁE:Zﬁ»msaE
B gagi_mﬁmg
T “(uesioqur
2. " i vepsy

R R 1IN 3 o

o N ;.S_ﬁmema_ paydaig g

0. e {4dn) s dncugy ave]

. g.ﬁmﬁmcm‘_ pasElg
Ht 6T T el o ey

WO W0
. 8 T %z Sy _ T

.08, 060 050 060 . 0670

.. loud) o "pieg
e PRGNS
i L
"loyed n Sue
(%) apeie

{idydny mol fedp|
{ydn) uezo>
SUGHBINGU0Y suey

ccv Sv

G0 008Y
L8

008} _
g6z

PEOY j00g B sueT] winEyBny pezisuueyd (0L

yead Ny Bupsixa ¥1.02 usysoo) jsel - sinuog unung







Gap Study Data Results
Intersection of Boot Road and Goshen Village Access
Combined Gaps - Boot Road.

9/12/2014
End of Study (17:45)
Start of Study (16:45)
Total Survey Time (60)
One Eastbound Through and one Westbound Through
24 Cartway
Gap Size Number Gap Size Multiply Gap Size Factor
(Seconds) of Gaps Factor by Number of Gaps
0to7 207 0 0
8toll 44 1 44
12to 15 24 2 48
16 to 17 3 3 9
18to21 1 4 4
221025 5 5 25
26t029 3 6 18
over 29 0 7 0
Total 188
Westbnound Gaps - Boot Road
9/12/2014
End of Study (17:45)
Start of Study (16:45)
Total Survey Time (60)
One Eastbound Through and one Westbound Through
24 Cartway
Gap Size Number Gap Size Multiply Gap Size Factor
(Seconds) of Gaps Factor by Number of Gaps
Oto7 123 0 0
8109 29 1 29
10to 13 18 2 36
14t017 22 3 66
181019 4 4 16
20t023 13 5 65
241025 6 6 36
over 25 28 7 196
Total 444




McMahon Associates Inc.
425 Commerce Drive, Suite 200
Fort Washington, PA 19034

Municipality: East Goshen Township File Name : paolibootGAPO1p
Location: Boot Road & Site Code : 11111111
Shopping Center Access Start Date : 9/12/2014
Counter/Board #: BW PageNo :1
Directions Printed: Westbound
Int.
. Volu 10-| 12-{ 14-} 16-| 18-1 20-] 22-| 24-{ 26-| 28- Averag
StartTime| " | 2-3) 4-5|6-7| 8-9| “y| 3l 45| 47| 4| 21| 23| 25| 27| 20| 729|Totdl e
1645 0 16 16 13 8 3 2 2 4 1 2 0 2 1 2 1 73 6-7
Total o© 16 16 13 8 3 2 2 4 1 2 0 2 1 2 1 73 6-7
17200 0 7 10 9 7 1 2 4 3 0 1 1 1 1 0 7 54 8-9
1745 o 10 12 5 7 4 3 2 1 1 1 4 1 1 0 6 58 8-9
1730 0 10 9 8 7 1 2 4 2 2 2. 2 2 2 1 6 58 8-9
GrandTotal O 43 47 33 29 9 9 12 10 4 8 7 6 5 3 20 243 6-7
Total % 177 193 136 119 37 37 49 41 16 25 29 25 21 12 82




Highway Capacity Manual 2010

Equation 19-31

Exhibit 19-11
Base Follow-Up Headways
for TWSC Intersections

Equation 19-32

Similar to the computation of critical headways, the analyst begins the
computation of follow-up headways with the base follow-up headways given in
Exhibit 19-11. The analyst then makes movement-specific adjustments to the base
follow-up headways with information gathered on heavy vehicles and the
geometrics of the major street per the adjustment factoxs given in Equation 19-31.

ey =t bmse +1 LHVPHV
whiere
t. = follow-up headway for movement x (s),
t1e = Dase follow-up headway from Exhibit 19-11 (s),

fmv = adjustment factor for heavy vehicles (0.9 for major streets with one
lane in each direction;, 1.0 for major streets with two or three lanes in
each direction), and

Py, = proportion of heavy vehicles for movement (expressed as a decimal;
e.g., Puy=0.02 for 2% heavy vehicles).

Base Follow-Up Headway, frus:. (S)

Vehicle Movement Two Lanes Fout Lanes Six Lanes
Left turn from major 2.2 2.2 3.1

y . 2.5 (wide)
U-turn from major N/A 3.4 (narrow) 2.3
Right turn from minor 3.3 3.3 39
Through traffic on minor 4.0 4.0 4,0
Left turn from minor 3.5 3.5 3.8

Values from Exhibit 19-10 and Exhibit 19-11 are based on studies throughout
the United States and are representative of a broad range of conditions. If smaller
values for ¢, and ¢ are observed, capacity will be increased. If larger values for £,

and t-are used, capacity will be decreased.

Step 5: Compute Potential Capacities

Step 5a: Potential Capacity If No Upstream Signal Effects Are Present

The potential capacity c,, of a movement is computed according to the gap-
acceptance model provided in Equation 19-32 (6). This model requires the
analyst to input the conflicting flow rate v,,, the critical headway f,,, and the
follow-up headway {,, for movement x.
Vg che,s 13,600

Cpin = Vo fm
where
¢« = potential capacity of movement x (veh/h),
v, = conflicting flow rate for movement x (veh/h),
f.. = critical headway for minor movement x (s), and
t,, = follow-up headway for minor movement x (s)-

Methodology

Page 19-16 Chapter 19/Two-Way Syop-Controlled Intersections
December 2010




